
Lincoln, Fort Rice, Riverview, Florence Lake, Burnt Creek, Canfield, Lyman, & Phoenix 
Unorganized Townships 

 
Burleigh County Commission Meeting Agenda 

Tom Baker Meeting Room, City/County Office Building, 221 N 5th St, Bismarck 

 

Attend in Person | Watch live on Government Access Channels 2 or 602 | Listen to Radio Access 102.5 FM |  
Stream on freetv.org or Dakota Media Access Facebook Live | Replay later from freetv.org 

August 5, 2024 
 
5:00 PM  
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance presented by Chaplain. 

 
COUNTY WEED BOARD 
1. Meeting called to order by the Chairman of the Board. 

2. Roll call of members. 

3. Approval of Agenda. 

4. Consideration of the July 1, 2024, meeting minutes and bills. 

5. Update and discussion on approval of bills. 

6. Other business. 

7. Adjourn 

COUNTY COMMISSION 
 
1. Meeting called to order by the Chairman of the Board. 

2. Roll call of members. 

3. Approval of Agenda. 

4. Consideration of the July 15, 2024, meeting minutes and bills. 

5. Consent Agenda: 
a. Abatements. 
b. Applications for licenses, raffles, and special events permits. 

 

6. Planning Director Flanagan: 

a. Zoning change for Burleigh County Soil Conservation District.  
b. Appeal of special use permit.   

 
7. County Engineer Hall: 

a. 2025 budget adjustments.  

8. County Sheriff Leben: 

https://dakotamediaaccess.org/
https://www.facebook.com/dakotamediaaccess
https://dakotamediaaccess.org/


a. Quarterly jail report.  

9. County Auditor Splonskowski/ County Finance Director Jacobs: 

a. Preliminary Budget Discussion.  

10. County Finance Director Jacobs.  

a. Sales tax bond escrow fund. 
b. Financial Statement Audit report.  

 
11. Chairman Bitner: 

a. Digitalization of County records.  

12. County HR Director Binder: 

a. Tyler Technologies Infinite Vision HR Module Implementation. 
b. Finance Director and Deputy Finance Director Job Description.  

 
13. Other business. 

14. Adjourn.  

 
The next regularly scheduled Commission meeting will be on August 19, 2024.  

 
Mark Splonskowski 
Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY 
 

 

 

 

WEED 
BOARD 



 
BURLEIGH COUNTY WEED BOARD 

MEETING MINUTES 
JULY 1, 2024 

 
6:06 P.M  
Chairman Bakken called the Burleigh County Weed Board meeting to order.  
 
A roll call of members: Commissioners Munson, Woodcox, Bitner, Schwab, and Chairman Bakken present. 
 
Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve the June 17th, 2024 minutes. All members 
present voted, “AYE.” Motion carried. 
 
Comm. Schwab brought to the Board’s attention that a couple of companies expressed interest in doing 
some spraying for the county. Comm. Schwab said he’ll be helping Weed Officer Johnson with negotiations 
so that some spraying can be done as soon as possible. Comm. Schwab warned that due to the 
circumstances they’re in, the county won’t have time to do the state highway rights-of-ways, which includes 
the interstate. No further action was taken. 
 
 
Meeting adjourned.  
 
______________________________                      ________________________________  
Mark Splonskowski, Auditor/Treasurer                      Steve Bakken, Chairman 



 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY 
 

 

 

 

COMMISSION 



 

BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 
MEETING 

JULY 15TH, 2024 

 

8:30 AM Pledge of Allegiance 

Chairman Bitner called the regular meeting of the Burleigh County Commission to order. 

Roll call of the members: Commissioners Woodcox, Munson, and Chairman Bitner were present; Comm. Bakken and Schwab 
were initially absent, both of whom arrived later. 

Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve the meeting agenda. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion 
carried. 

Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve the July 1st, 2024 meeting minutes and bills subject to Comm. 
Schwab’s review. All members present voted, “AYE”. 

The following abatements were presented for the Board’s consideration; a complete copy of which are on file and available for 
inspection in the office of the Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer. 
 

Owner Tax 
Year 

Legal Description Credit Type Current 
MV 

Reduced 
MV 

Bryan & Krista Diede 2023 
Block 3, Country West XXVI, Lot 1 
& N 5' of Lot 2 

100% Disabled 
Veteran $283,000  $229,000  

Dennis & Aleja-
Laura Larson 2023 Lot 14, Block 25, Wachter's 9th 

100% Disabled 
Veteran $451,500  $271,500  

Jerome & Gloria 
Braxmeyer 2023 

Lot 90 & undivided interest in 
common areas, Block 3, Southbay 
2nd Addn 

60% Disabled 
Veteran $680,700  $572,700  

Nii Amahtey 
Sampah & 
Antoinette Newman 2023 

Lot 26, Block 8, Heritage Park 
Addition 

100% Disabled 
Veteran $414,600  $234,600  

William & Jeanne 
Hunt 2023 Lot 2, Block 4, High Meadows 5th 

Error in property 
description $365,400  $346,900  

William & Jeanne 
Hunt 2024 Lot 2, Block 4, High Meadows 5th 

Error in property 
description $376,600  $358,100  

Tyler & Danielle 
Goetz 2022 Lot 1, Block 2, Pebble Creek 7th 

Error in property 
description $376,000  $340,400  

Tyler & Danielle 
Goetz 2023 Lot 1, Block 2, Pebble Creek 7th 

Error in property 
description $403,000  $367,400  

Tyler & Danielle 
Goetz 2024 Lot 1, Block 2, Pebble Creek 7th 

Error in property 
description $412,200  $376,600  

Marsha Reimnitz 2023 
Block 2, East View, Lot 502B of Lot 
22 less S 50' of W 22' of said Lot 22 

100% Homestead 
Credit $192,300  $0  

Heather Housley 2023 

SW1/4 Com at pt 890.8' W & 157' 
N of SE cor N80' E235' S80' W235' 
to pt of beg and tract 15' x 235', 
Block 2, Wing lands 

100% Homestead 
Credit $42,500  $0  

Dennis & Pamela 
Buchholz 2023 

Block 29, Stein's 4th, Lot 1A of Lot 
A of Lot 2 also known as tract AA 

50% Homestead 
Credit $214,500  $114,500  



 

Andrew Reimnitz 2023 Lot 2, Block 5, Parkview 
50% Homestead 
Credit $217,700  $117,700  

 
Motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve the Diede, Larson, Braxmeyer, Sampah & Newman, Hunt (2), 
Goetz (3), M. Reimnitz, Housley, Buchholz, & A. Reimnitz abatements plus the remainder of the consent agenda in its entirety. 
All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Jason Bohoer provided the Commission an update from the Lignite Energy Council, giving a rundown on how several factors – 
such as recent regulatory pushes by the Environmental Protection Agency, pressure from the neighboring state of Minnesota, 
and difficulty getting access to capital – have been affecting the state of North Dakota’s lignite industry. 

Brent Ekstrom from the Lewis & Clark Development Group came forward next and clarified to the Commission about what the 
Lewis & Clark Development Group does as an organization, namely lending for homeownership, affordable housing, and helping 
businesses connect with banks. 

County Engineer Hall presented to the Commission from the city of Bismarck the Central Outpost Subdivision plat and 
recommended the Commission accept the platted right of way. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve 
the platted right of way. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Emergency manager Senger presented to the Commission an idea to apply for the National Flood Insurance Community Rating 
System in a cost share opportunity alongside the Burleigh County Water Resource District for a 10 percent discount. Motion by 
Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to the cost share. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Finance Director Jacobs appeared and gave an update on the general funds reserve, stating that the general fund reserves is 
currently sitting somewhere around $16.6 million and leaves a current reserve balance of 47.6 percent. Jacobs estimated that 
the general funds reserve at year’s end could end somewhere in the realm of $19.5 to $21.5 million. 

The Missouri Valley Complex Committee brought to the Commission a request to approve engaging in the services of Swenson 
and Hagen phases one and two on behalf of the Committee to update the plat, and to approve the funding for the engineering 
services. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to the approve the Missouri Valley Complex Committee’s request. 
All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski presented to the Commission the preliminary review for Burleigh County’s 2025 budget, with 
important points of focus including an update to the courthouse’s boiler system (which would be paid through the county’s 
general fund reserves), employee retention & recruitment, increased funding for public health, additional staff, and increased 
funding for the highway department. Splonskowski stated that the total 2025 general fund expenditure budget is $40,383,254 (70 
percent of that amount – or $28,526,548 – is from salaries and fringe benefits), and the 2025 expenditure budget is $75,018,395.  

The Commission discussed individual items in the preliminary budget as follows: 

- First: a discussion about the need to update the boiler in the county courthouse arose. Given that the issue had been 
brought up time and time again in past meetings and is necessary for day-to-day functioning of the courthouse, a 
motion was made by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to pay for a new boiler in the county courthouse out of the 
county’s current maintenance fund, with any excess to come from general fund reserves. All members present voted 
“AYE”. Motion carried.  

- Second: Comm. Munson made a point that the county needs to be more involved in the management of Public Health, 
as Burleigh County only has a 25 percent share on the board of Bismarck-Burleigh Public Health; Comm. Munson 
advocated for Burleigh County to develop the necessary funds and reserves to either create its own or take over 
current public health operations. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Schwab to not go with Munson’s proposal 
and instead maintain the county’s current commitment to Bismarck-Burleigh Public Health at 25 percent. Comm. 
Bakken, Schwab, and Bitner voted “AYE”; Comm. Munson and Woodcox voted “NAY”. Motion carried.  

- Third: within the current preliminary budget, the budget includes a two-step and two percent COLA increase to county 
employee salaries. This was discussed by the Commission, who decided to hold off on making any changes to this 
aspect until the next budget meeting. No further action was taken. 



 

- Fourth: the Commission reviewed a request by the Planning Department for an additional planner employee as well as 
$90,000 for a comprehensive planning update. County Planning Director Mitch Flanagan was not present to help 
answer some of the details the Commission wanted answers for. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to 
keep the employee and eliminate the plan update. Comm. Bakken, Schwab, Woodcox, and Bitner voted “AYE”; Comm. 
Munson voted “NAY”. Motion carried. 

- Fifth: the Commission reviewed a renewed proposal for the hiring of a county administrator. While Chairman Bitner and 
Comm. Munson said they didn’t see a need for that position, Comm. Bakken and Woodcox disagreed. Both dissenting 
commissioners argued that with the current fractionalized nature of county operations – and as said operations look to 
move into the Provident Building and grow from there – the position of a county administrator should be considered 
more seriously. As discussion on this topic eventually came to a deadlock, a motion was made by Comm. Bakken, 2nd 
by Comm. Schwab to strike the county administrator position out of the budget. Comm. Bakken, Schwab, Woodcox, 
and Bitner voted “AYE”; Comm. Munson voted “NAY”. Motion carried. 

- Sixth: the Commission reviewed a request by the Auditor’s office for an additional accountant. Auditor/Treasurer 
Splonskowski informed the Commission that this year the Finance Department was expressly forbidden from assisting 
the Auditor’s office by decision of the current portfolio holder of both the Finance Department and Auditor’s office (who 
is currently Chairman Bitner). Historically, the Finance Department has always assisted the Auditor’s office in the 
budget-making process; thus, the decision to bar the Finance Department and Auditor’s office from working together 
has resulted in an increased workload on the Auditor’s side. Splonskowski continued by saying if some of the Finance 
Director’s responsibilities are to be transferred over to the Auditor’s office, additional staff in the Auditor’s office is 
required to help with the increased workload. In the absence of the Finance Department, it was acknowledged that 
former Burleigh County Finance Director Clyde Thompson had been offering his services to help craft the budget for 
Burleigh County. Commissioner Munson pointed out that there was an agreement in place for the Finance Director 
Jacobs and Assistant Finance Director Schmidt to have 20 hours per week dedicated to working in the Auditor’s office 
for training and interdepartmental assistance, and perhaps suggested strengthening that option to resolve the problem. 
Comm. Schwab and Chairman Bitner both also proposed furthering the education of current staff within both the 
Auditor’s office and Finance Department. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to strike the accountant 
position out of the budget and maintain the 20-hours per week floating arrangement. Comm. Bakken, Schwab, 
Munson, and Bitner voted “AYE”; Comm. Woodcox voted “NAY”. Motion carried. 

- Seventh: the Commission reviewed a request by the State’s Attorney office for additional staff. All of the Commission 
was in agreement to keep the request as is due to the State’s Attorney office remaining consistently understaffed. No 
further action was taken. 

- Eighth: the Commission reviewed the Sheriff’s Department’s portion of the budget and had no questions for the 
Sheriff’s Department. No further action was taken. 

The County Commission adjourned at 11:06 AM to allow the Burleigh County Park Board to conduct its meeting after reaching a 
quorum. The County Commission then reconvened at 11:12 AM to enter an executive session regarding the Provident Building; 
it publicly reconvened at 11:30 AM to continue its discussion of the preliminary budget. Roll call of the members: Commissioners 
Woodcox, Munson, Bakken, Schwab, and Chairman Bitner were present. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to 
proceed with their discussion from executive session to just affirm their consensus. All members present voted “AYE”. 

- Ninth: the Commission reviewed the Highway Department’s portion of the budget. It was noted that the 2025 Highway 
Department proposed budget was around $2 million less than 2024’s, as the Highway Department made many cuts to 
their budget. After some discussion, motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to have the Highway 
Department use their previous 2024 budget amount of $16,482,488 for their 2025 operating budget with no mill levy 
increase using Legacy fund, General fund reserves, and Prairie Dog funds to fill it. Comm. Bakken, Schwab, Munson, 
and Bitner voted “AYE”; Comm. Woodcox voted “NAY”. Motion carried. 

Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the preliminary budget. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion 
carried. 

Emergency manager Senger returned to inform the Commission that at some point the county should look at negotiating a 
contract for the bid pot project for the water line and remodel, but the Commission had already taken the next steps necessary 
for that project. 
 



 

 
Meeting Adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________                            ________________________________    
Mark Splonskowski, County Auditor/Treasurer                           Brian Bitner, Chairman 



The following list of abatements and settlement of taxes is forwarded for action to the Burleigh County Commission: 

Abate # Owner Tax Year Legal Description Credit Type Current MV Reduced MV

24-643
Bismarck Parks and 
Recreation District 2024 Lot 21, Block 8, Silver Ranch 3rd Addition

Property exempt from 
taxation $200 $100

24-652 Todd Schimke 2023 Lots 1-2, Block 19, Fisher 50% Homestead Credit $254,400 $154,400

24-653 Betty Baker 2023
Lot 8 & N 48' of Lot 9, Blk 22, Cliffords 
Subdivision 50% Homestead Credit $145,000 $72,500













 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 6 



































 
 

          
   

 

 

 

AGENDA 
July 10, 2024 

1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of the June Minutes 
 
3. Consent Agenda (The following item(s) are request(s) for a public hearing)  
 

 3-1 Aberle 2nd Subdivision 
 3-2 Amendment to Zoning Ordinance 

- Article 8 – Special Use, Section 28 - Agri-Recreation 
 3-3 Amendment to Zoning Ordinance 

- Article 8 – Special Use, Section 29- Solar Farms 
 
4. Public Hearing Agenda  
 
 4-1  Menoken Farm Facility Zoning Change 
  A-Agricultural to P-Public Use District 
 4-2 Baldwin Greenhouse Special Use Permit 

- Corn Maze for 2024 Session 
 
5. Other Business:  
 
 5-1 Draft Ordinance Article 8, Section 30 – Data Centers 
 5-2 Draft Ordinance Article 8, Section 31 Accessory Dwelling Units on A- 
  Agricultural and R1-Rural Single-Family Residential Zoning Districts. 
 
6. Adjourn – Next meeting – August 14, 2024  

Burleigh County Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meeting Agenda 

Tom Baker Meeting Room, City/County Building, 221 5th Street N, 
Bismarck, ND 

5:15pm 

  

 

Attend in Person ‖ Watch Live on Government Access Channels 2 or 602  ‖ Stream on Freetv.org or  
Dakota Media Access Facebook Live  ‖ Replay Later from Freetv.org 

https://dakotamediaaccess.org/
https://www.facebook.com/dakotamediaaccess
https://dakotamediaaccess.org/


This Page Intentionally Left Blank



As set forth under Chapter 11, Section 33 of the North Dakota Century Code and Article 33 of the Burleigh County Ordinances, the 
Planning Commission shall approve or disapprove the subdivision of all lands within its jurisdiction and recommend the same to the 
Board of Burleigh County Commissioners 

Agenda Item 3-1 

Application for a Preliminary Subdivision & Zoning Change 

Project Summary 
Consent Agenda: Aberle 2nd Subdivision 
Status: Planning and Zoning Commission – 

Consideration 
Petitioner/Developer Janice Aberle 
Engineer Swenson Hagen & Co. 
Location: Part of the NW 1/4 of Section 29, 

Township 139 N Range 78 W, Burleigh 
County, ND 

Project Size: 6 acres more or less 
Zoning Change A-Agricultural to R1 Rural 
Single Family Residential  

Petitioners Request Approval of the preliminary plat and zoning 
change.  Call for a public hearing 

3-1-1 Location Map 



Page 2 of 7 July 10, 2024 
Aberle 2nd Subdivision 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

July 10, 2024 

History/Description 

 Burleigh County was approached regarding a one (1) lot subdivision and zoning change 
from A-Agricultural to R1-Rural Single Family Residential. 

The review committee did not find issues of concern.  A Stormwater Waiver has been 
requested and approved.  A paving waiver has been requested and was granted by the 
Board of Burleigh County Commissioners in May.  

The surrounding properties are zoned A- Agricultural, however, the size of the property 
conforms to similar parcels in the area. 

Attachment 3-1-2 Preliminary Plat 



Page 3 of 7 July 10, 2024 
Aberle 2nd Subdivision 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

July 10, 2024 

Attachment 3-1-3 Site Map 



Page 4 of 7 July 10, 2024 
Aberle 2nd Subdivision 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

July 10, 2024 

Aerial View – 
google maps 



Page 5 of 7 July 10, 2024 
Aberle 2nd Subdivision 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

July 10, 2024 

South View 



Page 6 of 7 July 10, 2024 
Aberle 2nd Subdivision 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

July 10, 2024 

 Staff Findings: 

1. This subdivision fulfills the requirements of Article 33 of the Burleigh County
Zoning Ordinance.

2. This zoning change fulfills the requirements of Article 12 of the Burleigh
County Zoning Ordinance

3. A paving waiver has been granted
4. A Stormwater Management Plan or Waiver Request has been granted
5. This preliminary plat has been submitted to all reviewing entities.  All concerns

and corrections have been addressed.

North View 



Page 7 of 7 July 10, 2024 
Aberle 2nd Subdivision 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

July 10, 2024 

6. This subdivision and zoning change meet the requirements of the Burleigh
County Comprehensive Plan Article 3 Residential Neighborhoods – Objectives
1 and 2.

Planning Staff Recommendation 

The petition for a preliminary plat and zoning change meets all administrative 
requirements of the Burleigh County Zoning Ordinance.  Staff recommends approval of 
the preliminary plat and zoning change. and calling for a public hearing. 

Planning Commission Action 

The Burleigh County Planning and Zoning Commission can: 

1. Approve the preliminary plat and zoning change.  Call for a public hearing.
2. Approve the preliminary plat and zoning change with conditions and call for a

public hearing after all condition have been completed.
3. Deny the preliminary plat and zoning change with reason.
4. Table the preliminary plat and zoning change for more information.



Attachments - Aberle 2nd Subdivision and Zoning Change



14
5T

H
 S

T
 N

E

30TH AVE NE

14
5T

H
 S

T
 N

E
14

5T
H

 S
T

 N
E

HIGHWAY 10 HIGHWAY 10

2000

2650

2301

Map created from Burleigh County’s web mapping application. This map is for representation use only and does not represent a survey. No liability is assumed as to the accuracy of the data delineated hereon.

±
7/1/2024

BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

LOCATION MAP



6.00 ACRES
EXISTING ZONING: A
PROPOSED ZONING: R1
1 LOT 1 BLOCK

OWNER:  JANICE ABERLE
5801 PRAIRIE ROSE LOOP
BISMARCK, ND 58501

SURVEYOR:  SWENSON HAGEN & CO
  TERRY BALTZER
  909 BASIN AVE
  BISMARCK, ND  58504

ABERLE SECOND SUBDIVISION

PRELIMINARY PLAT

&Co

H
S Surveying

Hydrology
Land Planning

Civil Engineering
Landscape & Site Design

Construction Management

909 Basin Avenue

Bismarck, North Dakota 58504

sheng@swensonhagen.com

Phone (701) 223 - 2600

Fax (701) 223 - 2606

SWENSON, HAGEN & COMPANY P.C.

LOCATION MAP

BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA



14
5T

H
 S

T
 N

E
14

5T
H

 S
T

 N
E

2650

2301

Map created from Burleigh County’s web mapping application. This map is for representation use only and does not represent a survey. No liability is assumed as to the accuracy of the data delineated hereon.

±
7/1/2024

BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

LOCATION MAP



3-1-4 Aerial View 



3-1-5 South View



3-1-6 North View 



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



Page 1 of 4 

  ORDINANCE 24-0--------  

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND RE-ENACT ARTICLE 8 OF THE 1972 AMENDED 
ZONING ORDINANCE OF BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA RELATING TO 

SECTION  28 AGRICULTURAL RECREATION 

Section 1.  Amendment   Article 8 of the Zoning Ordinance is hereby 
amended and re-enacted as follows:  

Section 28 Agriculture Recreation 

Agriculture Recreation may be permitted in an Agricultural District as a special use. All 
persons, entities or organizations wishing to establish the use of Agricultural Recreation 
within Burleigh County must apply for and be granted a special-use permit.  

Definitions. The following definitions represent the meanings of terms 
   as they are used in these regulations: 

Agriculture. The Science or practice of cultivating the soil, producing crops and or 
raising livestock. 

 Agriculture Recreation. An agriculture recreation use combines 
agricultural production with recreational uses that are in common 
with and ancillary to the primary agricultural use and in 
conjunction with a single-family dwelling.  

 Agriculture Recreation Tier 1   Any agriculture-related activity, 
in conjunction with agricultural production which is 
intended to educate the public in a singular one-day event 
about agriculture, agricultural practices, agricultural 
activities, or agricultural products. 

Agricultural Recreation Tier II  Any agricultural-related use 
that combines agriculture production with recreation uses 
that are in common with and ancillary to the primary 
agricultural use, such as pumpkin patches, farm 
festivals, corn mazes, hayrides, trail rides, U-Pick orchards, 



Page 2 of 4 

on-farm markets, floriculture, demonstration farms, 
U-Pick Christmas tree farms or similar activities for 
someone other than the property owner, involving the 
gathering of individuals assembled for the common 
purpose of said event.  

Special Uses In order to carry out the purposes of this title. Board of Burleigh County 
Commissioners find it necessary to require that certain uses, because of unusual size, safety 
hazards, infrequent occurrence, effect on surrounding area, or other reasons, be reviewed 
by the Burleigh County Planning and Zoning Commission prior to the granting of a building 
permit or certificate of occupancy and that the Burleigh County Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the Zoning Administrator (where allowed) are hereby given limited 
discretionary powers relating to the granting of such a permit or certificate. 

1. Permanent Uses (Planning and Zoning Commission approval) Burleigh County Planning
and Zoning Commission is authorized to recommend approval of Special Use Permits for
the following uses:

A. Agriculture Recreation Tier II may be permitted in any A-Agricultural District as a 
Special Use provided: 

1. The use is ancillary to the primary agricultural uses, and in conjunction
with an owner-occupied single-family dwelling.

2. The lot in which the use is located is at least forty (40) acres in area,
thirty-five (35) acres aliquot description.

3. Attendance is limited to seventy-five (75) persons in attendance at any
time.

4. Limited to thirty (30) events per year
5. Site design and building(s) must conform to all applicable requirements

of the International Building Code (IBS) and the International Fire Code
(IFC) as adopted by the State of North Dakota.

6. The events or activities shall not involve the construction or use of new or
permanent structures.

7. All parking areas shall be mowed and designed to prevent debris from
the site entering the public right-of-way, and be arranged to provide for
orderly and safe loading or unloading and parking.

8. Sound generated by the use shall meet the requirements as outlined in
NDCC.

9. All outdoor light fixtures shall be installed in a manner intended to limit
the amount of off-site impacts.  Light fixtures located near adjacent
properties may require special shielding devices to prevent light trespass.



Page 3 of 4 

10. The use is setback a minimum of 100 feet to all adjacent properties.
11. A site plan is required.
12. If necessary, a stormwater management plan is required to be submitted

for review and approval prior to the issuance of a building permit
13. Off-street parking is required.  Parking on grass and agricultural areas

may be gravel or low-cut grass area.   Parking ratios shall be determined
in accordance with Article 10 Automobile Parking.

14. Under certain circumstances, items for road/ditch repair and dust control
application at the permittees cost, may be required.

15. Additional conditions may be included in the Special Use Permit.
16. After approval and issuance of a Special Use Permit, any violations of

Section 28 may/shall be basis for revocation of the Special Use Permit.

Article 11 A-Agricultural Zoning District In an A-Agricultural District, the following 
regulations shall apply: 

1. Uses Permitted.  The following uses are permitted.
a. Agricultural Recreation Tier 1

i. Agriculture Recreation Tier 1 shall be allowed on a parcel of land
forty (40) acres in area, (thirty-five (35) aliquot description.)

2. The following Special Uses are allowed as per Section 28 hereof:
a. Agricultural Recreation Tier II

Section 2 Repeal.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this 
ordinance are  hereby repealed. 

Section 3. Severability  If any section provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional such as adjudication shall not affect the 
validity of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or  
part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

Section 4. Effective Date This ordinance shall take effect after final passage, adoption and 
publication as provided by law 

First Reading Passed:  

Passed and adopted this ________ day of ____________________, 2024 



Page 4 of 4 

_____________________________________________  
Brian Bitner                                         Chairperson  

Final passage and adoption:  

I, Mark Splonskowski, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected auditor of 
the County of Burleigh, State of North Dakota, and that the foregoing is a 
full, true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the Board of Burleigh 
County Commissioners at its regular meeting of 
______________________________  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: I have hereto set my hand and seal of Burleigh 
County this _______ day of ____________________, 2024  

__________________________________________  
Mark Splonskowski, Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



Ord 24-00 1 of 9  Art.8 Sec. 30 

ORDINANCE 24-0-------- 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND RE-ENACT ARTICLE 8 OF THE 1972 AMENDED ZONING 
ORDINANCE OF BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA RELATING TO SECTION 29 SOLAR 
FARMS  

Section 1.  Amendment   Article 8 of the Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended and  
re-enacted as follows:  

  SECTION 29 Solar Energy System Facilities  

A solar energy system may be permitted in an Agricultural District upon approval as a special 
use, provided the criteria and submittal requirements are met.   

Burleigh County finds that it is in the public interest to encourage the use and development of 
renewable energy systems (including solar energy systems) that have a positive impact on 
energy conservation with limited adverse impact on nearby properties.  Burleigh County 
supports the use of solar collection systems and the development of solar energy farms.  
Consistent with the Burleigh County Comprehensive Plan, it is the intent of the County with this 
Section to create standards for the reasonable capture and use, by households, businesses and 
property owners, of their solar energy resource and encourage the development and use of 
solar energy.   

I. DEFINITIONS   

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Article and Section, shall have the 
meaning provided herein, except where the context clearly indicates otherwise:     

1. Agrivoltaics- The dual use of land for combining agriculture with solar energy
production, typically, with raised co-located solar arrays above agricultural activity.

2. Building-Integrated Solar System- An active solar system that is an integral part of a
principal or accessory building, rather than a separate mechanical device, replacing
or substituting for an architectural or structural component of the building. Building
integrated systems include, but are not limited to, photovoltaic or thermal solar



Ord 24-00 2 of 9  Art.8 Sec. 30 

systems that are contained within roofing materials, windows, skylights and 
awnings.   

3. Community Solar Energy System-   A solar-electric (photovoltaic) array that provides
retail electric power between 100kW and 10 MW (or a financial proxy for retail
power) to multiple community members or businesses residing or located off-site
from the location of the solar energy system.

4. Ground Mounted Panels-   Freestanding solar panels mounted to the ground by use
of stabilizers or similar apparatus.

5. Photovoltaic System-   An active solar energy system that converts solar energy
directly into electricity.

6. Roof or Building Mounted SES- Solar Energy System (panels) that are mounted to the
roof or building using brackets, stands or other apparatus.

7. Roof Pitch- The final exterior slope of a building roof calculated by the rise over the
run, typically, but not exclusively, expressed in twelfths such as 3/12, 9/12, 12/12.

8. Solar Access-   A view of the sun, from any point on the collector surface that is not
obscured by any vegetation, building, or object located on parcels of land other than
the parcel upon which the solar collector is located, between the hours of 9:00 AM
and 3:00 PM Standard time on any day of the year.

9. Solar Collector- A device, structure or a part of a device or structure that the primary
purpose is to transform solar radiant energy into thermal, mechanical, chemical or
electrical energy.

10. Solar Energy- Radiant energy received from the sun that can be collected in the form
of heat or light by a solar collector.

11. Solar Energy System (SES)- An active solar energy system that collects or stores solar
energy and transforms solar energy into another form of energy or transfers heat
from a collector to another medium using mechanical, electrical, thermal or
chemical means.



Ord 24-00 3 of 9  Art.8 Sec. 30 

12. Solar Farm- A commercial facility that converts sunlight into electricity, whether by
photovoltaics (PV), concentrating solar thermal devices (CST), or other conversion
technology, for the primary purpose of wholesale sales of generated electricity.  A
solar farm is the primary land use for the parcel on which it is located.

13. Solar Hot Water System- A system that includes a solar collector and a heat
exchanger that heats or preheats water for building heating systems or other hot
water needs, including hot water for commercial processes.

II. APPLICABILITY

These regulations are for all solar energy systems and solar energy farms on properties and 
structures under the jurisdiction of the Burleigh County Zoning Ordinance except that Burleigh 
County requires the owner or operator of solar farms that would generate electricity greater 
than 50 megawatts of power to have approval for such a system from the North Dakota Public 
Service Commission.   

Types of Solar Energy Systems.  

1. Rooftop solar energy systems:

Accessory to the primary land use, designed to supply energy for the primary use:   

a. These systems are permitted accessory uses in all districts in which buildings
are permitted. The owner or contractor shall receive a electrical, building and
or a mechanical permit before installing a rooftop solar energy system.

2. Ground-mount solar energy systems:

Accessory to the primary land use, designed to supply energy for the primary use.  

a. Ground-mount systems are permitted accessory uses in all districts in which
buildings are permitted.

b. Ground-mount systems require a Burleigh County building permit and are
subject to the accessory use standards for the district in which it is located,
including setback. The height of a ground-mounted shall not exceed 10 feet
and shall not cover or encompass more than 10 percent of the total property
area or lot size.

3. Community solar energy systems:



Ord 24-00 4 of 9  Art.8 Sec. 30 

Roof or ground-mount solar energy systems, may be either accessory or primary 
use, designed to supply energy for off-site uses on the distribution grid, but not for 
export to the wholesale market or connection to the electric transmission grid.   
These systems shall be subject to the following conditions:    

a. Rooftop community solar energy systems are permitted in AG districts in
which buildings are permitted.

b. Ground-mount community solar energy systems are an accessory use in all
districts.

c. An interconnection agreement must be completed with the electric utility in
whose service territory the system is located.

d. All structures must meet the setback, height and coverage limitations for the
district in which the system is located.

e. Ground-mount systems must meet all required standards for structures in
the district in which the system is located.

f. Site Plan Required:  The owner or operator shall submit to the County a
detailed site plan for both existing and proposed conditions.  These plans
shall show the location of all areas where solar arrays would be placed, the
existing and proposed structures, property lines, access points, fencing,
landscaping, surface water drainage patterns, floodplains, wetlands, the
ordinary high-water mark for all water bodies, any other protected
resources, topography, electric equipment and all other characteristics
requested by the County.

g. Power and communication lines.  Power and communication lines running
between banks of solar panels and to electric substations or
interconnections with buildings shall be buried underground. The Building
Official or their designee may grant exemptions to this requirement in
instances where shallow bedrock, water courses or other elements of the
natural landscape interfere with the ability to bury lines.

4. Solar farms:

Ground-mount solar energy arrays that are the primary use on the lot or of a 
property, designed for providing energy to off-site uses or export to the wholesale 
market.  These types of systems are permitted and regulated by the North Dakota 
Public Service Commission and ND State Electrical Board.    



Ord 24-00 5 of 9  Art.8 Sec. 30 

a. Solar farms are allowed under a special use permit in Agricultural (AG)
zoning.

b. Shall be on properties of at least 10 acres in size.

c. Stormwater management and erosion and sediment control, if required,
shall meet the design restrictions of the County.

d. Foundations.  If required, the manufacturer’s engineer or a ND registered
design professional shall certify that the foundation and design of the

solar panels meet the accepted professional standards, given local soil
and climate conditions.

e. Other standards and codes. All solar farms shall meet all applicable local,
state and federal regulatory standards, including the State of North
Dakota Building Code and the National Electric Code.

f. Power and communication lines.  Power and communication lines
running between banks of solar panels and to electric substations or
interconnections with buildings shall be buried underground.  The Building
Official or their designee may grant exemptions to this requirement in instances
where shallow bedrock, water courses or other elements of the natural
landscape interfere with the ability to bury lines as reviewed by the
manufacturer’s engineer or a ND registered design professional.

g. Interconnection.  The owner or operator of the solar farm must complete
an interconnection agreement with the electric utility in whose service
territory the system is located.

a. Site Plan Required.  The owner or operator of the solar
farm must submit to the County a detailed site plan for
both existing and proposed conditions.  These plans shall
show the location of all areas where solar arrays would be
placed, proposed location and distances from the existing
and proposed structures, property lines, access points to
the site, fencing, landscaping, surface water drainage
patterns, floodplains, wetlands, the ordinary high- water
mark for all water bodies, any other protected resources,
topography, electric equipment and all other
characteristics requested by the County.

b. The County allows the installation of small operations,
security and equipment buildings on the site of solar farms
as permitted accessory uses to the solar farm.



Ord 24-00 6 of 9  Art.8 Sec. 30 

c. No freestanding accessory solar energy system may
exceed 1,000 square feet in area per acre of land in the lot 
or parcel.   

d. The owner or operator shall contain all unenclosed
electrical conductors located above ground within
structures that control access or they must be protected
from entry by a six-foot-tall fence.  All electrical
connections to the utility system must meet or exceed the
National Electrical Safety Code and any additional
requirements set forth by the ND State Electrical Board.

e. Solar farms that have panels that would cover more than
20 acres of land must meet the approval review and design 
standards of the North Dakota Public Service Commission 
and ND State Electrical Board. 

5. Accessory Solar Energy Systems:

a. Solar Access: an applicant may obtain solar easements from the adjoining
property owners to preserve direct access to sunlight, as authorized by
Section 47-05-01.2 of the North Dakota Century Code. A permit granted
by Burleigh County to install a solar energy system does not guarantee
solar access.

b. Accessory Use: Solar energy systems are permitted as an accessory use,
subject to all requirements of Article 8 Section 30 and the building code
requirements of Article 22 Section 1.

c. An accessory solar energy system must be located on the same lot or
parcel of land as the primary use it is intended to serve.

d. An accessory solar energy system is intended to produce energy primarily
for on-site consumption but excess electrical power may be transferred
to a power supply grid pursuant to utility company interconnection
agreements.

6. Decommissioning Plan:

The County requires the owner or operator to submit a decommissioning plan for 
ground-mounted systems to ensure that the owner or operator properly removes 
the equipment and facilities upon the end of project life or after their useful life.  



Ord 24-00 7 of 9  Art.8 Sec. 30 

The owner or operator shall decommission the solar panels in the event they are not 
in use for twelve (12) consecutive months.  The plan shall include provisions for the 
removal of all structures and foundations, the removal of all electrical transmission 
components, the restoration of soil and vegetation and a soundly-based plan 
ensuring financial resources will be available to fully decommission the site.  The 
disposal of structures and/or foundations shall meet all County requirements and 
the requirements of the County Solid Waste Ordinance.  The County also may 
require the owner or operator to post a bond, letter of credit or establish and 
escrow account to ensure property decommissioning.    

7. Prohibitions:

The County prohibits community solar farms located within: 

a. All Floodplain Districts and Designated SFHA Areas.

8. Additional standards:

In addition to the requirements listed above, all solar energy systems shall meet the
following standards.

a. The owners or operators of electric solar energy systems that are connected
to the electric distribution or transmission system, either directly or through
the existing service of the primary use on the site, shall obtain an
interconnection agreement with the electric utility in whose service territory
the system is located.  Off-grid systems are exempt from this requirement.

b. Electric solar system components that are connected to a building electric
system must have an Underwriters Laboratory (UL) listing.

c. All solar energy systems shall meet the standards of the North Dakota
Electrical Code and National Electric Code.

d. Solar farms shall control all Noxious Weeds according to NDCC Chapter 4.1-
47.

e. All electrical lines serving a freestanding accessory solar energy system shall
be buried.

f. All rooftop solar systems shall meet the standards of the North Dakota
Building Code.

g. All solar energy systems using a reflector to enhance solar production shall
minimize glare from the reflector that affects adjacent or nearby properties.



Ord 24-00 8 of 9  Art.8 Sec. 30 

Steps to minimize glare nuisance may include selective placement of the 
system, screening on the north side of the solar array, reducing use of the 
reflector system or other remedies that limit glare.   

h. Roof-mounted solar systems shall not exceed the maximum allowed height in
any zoning district.

i. All exterior electrical and plumbing lines, batteries, and other appurtenant
features serving a building-mounted accessory solar energy system shall be
either screened. or painted/coated to match the color of adjacent roofing or
siding materials. This provision does not apply to a solar collector.

j. The non-collecting side of a solar collector and other appurtenant features of
any freestanding accessory solar energy system shall be screened from view
of said public right-of-way with landscape buffer and/or fencing.

k. Commercial rooftop systems shall be placed on the roof to limit visibility
from the public right-of-way or to blend into the roof design, provided that
minimizing visibility still allows the property owner to reasonably capture
solar energy.

l. Setbacks.  All equipment and structures shall meet the setback and coverage
limitations for the zoning district in which the system is located. No
freestanding accessory solar energy system may extend into or over a legally
recorded easement

Section 2.    Repeal.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance  
are hereby repealed.   

Section 3.  Severability.  If any section provision or part of this ordinance shall be  
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional such adjudication shall not affect 
the validity of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or   
part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional.   

 Section 4.   Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect after final passage, adoption  
and publication as provided by law.  

First Reading Passed:  ______________________________________ 

Passed and adopted this ________ day of ____________________, 2024 



Ord 24-00 9 of 9  Art.8 Sec. 30 

_______________________________________________________ 

Brian Bitner, Chairperson  

Final passage and adoption: 

I, Mark Splonskowski, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected auditor of the County of 
Burleigh, State of North Dakota, and that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of an 
ordinance adopted by the Board of Burleigh County Commissioners at its regular meeting of 
________day of ______________________, 2024  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: I have hereto set my hand and seal of Burleigh County this _______ day 
of ____________________, 2024  

__________________________________________   

Mark Splonskowski, Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



As set forth under Chapter 11, Section 33 of the North Dakota Century Code and Article 33 of the Burleigh County Ordinances, the 
Planning Commission shall approve or disapprove the subdivision of all lands within its jurisdiction and recommend the same to the 
Board of Burleigh County Commissioners 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

July 10, 2024 

Agenda Item: 4-1 Menoken Farm Facility Zoning Change 

Public Hearing 

Project Summary 

Public Hearing Menoken Farm Facility – Zoning Change 
A-Agricultural to P-Public unit 
Development 

Status: Public Hearing 

Petitioner/Developer Burleigh County Soil Conservation District 

Engineer N/A 

Location: Menoken Township Section 34 N1/2 lying 
South of RR ROW 

Attachment 4-1-1 Location Map 

Project Size: 150 acres more or less 
A- Agricultural Zoning 



Page 2 of 6 July 10, 2024 
Menoken Farm Facility 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

June 12, 2024 

Posted Dates: 
Bismarck Tribune -  6/24/2024 & 7/3/2024 
Surrounding Property Owners - 6/27/2024 
Burleigh County Website – 6/28/2024 

Notification Distance 2 miles  - 113 notifications sent 

Burleigh County was approached by the Burleigh County Soil Conservation District 
regarding their plan to build a learning center/assembly area building.  The 8,300-sf 
building will be a public use building with a learning center, larger assembly area and 
office space. 

The building plans have been submitted and a review is starting.  A septic system for the 
site is being designed for the site.  The Stormwater Management Plan has been 
submitted and approved.  

History 

4-1-2 Site Map 



Page 3 of 6 July 10, 2024 
Menoken Farm Facility 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

June 12, 2024 

 

The Menoken Farm Facility combines natural resource education and a systems 
approach to conservation.  The 150-acre property is a demonstration farm established in 
2009 to explore soil conservation methods.  The farm is owned and operated by the 
Burleigh County Soil Conservation District.  They receive additional funding from: 

- Section 319 Nonpoint Source Pollution Control Program through the North 
Dakota Department of Health/Water Quality Division 

- Natural Resources Conservation Service, US Department of Agriculture. 

The Menoken Farm Facility holds various events at the site and offers training and 
education in conservation methods for rural and urban areas.  Visitors have two (2) 
access points the location: 

- I94 East to Exit 170, 158th Street NE/County Hwy 10, 171st Street NE 
- Main Ave East to 171st Street 

Analysis 



Page 4 of 6 July 10, 2024 
Menoken Farm Facility 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

June 12, 2024 

Article 20.1 – Public Use District, Burleigh County Zoning Ordinance 

The P-Public Use District is established for areas which the principal land use is 
governmental, civic or institutional uses, including major public facilities.  The regulation 
is intended to prohibit any other use which would diminish it value in serving the needs 
of the public. P-Public Use District is an alternative zoning classification for public and 
institutional uses.   

The Menoken Farm Facility meets the criteria of Article 20.1 – P – Public Use District 
Regulations of the Burleigh County Planning and Zoning Ordinance.  The principal land 
use is a governmental, civic and institutional.   

The Menoken Farm Facility meets the criteria of the 2014 Burleigh County 
Comprehensive Plan Article 4 - Parks & Recreation Goal:  Conserve and expand the 
County’s recreational and scenic areas, natural features, parks, and open spaces for the 
benefit and enjoyment of the public.  The Menoken Farm Facilities offers educational 
seminars and farm tours to the public.  

North View 



Page 5 of 6 July 10, 2024 
Menoken Farm Facility 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

June 12, 2024 

 Staff Findings: 

1. The zoning change from A-Agricultural to P – Public Use District fulfils the
requirements of Article 20.1 of the Burleigh County Zoning Ordinance.

2. Stormwater Management plan has been completed.
3. All concerns of the necessary county entities have been addressed.
4. The established use of the parcel will not change.
5. The parcel is owned and operated by a government agency
6. The parcel is in Menoken Township.  The township has been notified

regarding the zoning change request.
7. The parcel meets the criteria of 2014 Burleigh County Comprehensive Plan

Menoken Farm Facility 



Page 6 of 6 July 10, 2024 
Menoken Farm Facility 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

June 12, 2024 

Planning Staff Recommendation 

The requested zoning change meets all the criteria of Article 20.1 – Public Use District of 
the Burleigh Zoning Ordinance.  Staff recommends approving the request with a “Do 
Pass” recommendation. 

Planning Commission Action 

The Burleigh County Planning and Zoning Commission can: 

1. Approve the request and give a “Do Pass” recommendation to the Board of
Burleigh County Commissioners.

2. Approve the request with conditions.
3. Deny the request with reason.
4. Table the request for more information.



Attachments - Menoken Farm Facility - Zoning Change



FA
R

G
O

S
T

N
 B

IS
M

A
R

C
K

 S
T

17
1S

T
 S

T
 S

E

MENOKEN DR

5TH AVE NE

18
4T

H
 S

T
 N

E

17
1S

T
 S

T
 N

E
17

1S
T

 S
T

 N
E

HIGHWAY 10 HIGHWAY 10

Map created from Burleigh County’s web mapping application. This map is for representation use only and does not represent a survey. No liability is assumed as to the accuracy of the data delineated hereon.

±
5/31/2024LOCATION MAP

BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

LEGAL: MENOKEN TOWNSHIP Section 34 N1/2 LYING SOUTH OF RR R/W 701210 34-139-78

MAIL ADDRESS: 916 E INTERSTATE AVE #6, BISMARCK, ND 58503-0560

SITE ADDRESS: 1107 NE 171ST ST

PARCEL ID: 33-139-78-00-34-220     OWNER: BURLEIGH CO SOIL CONS DISTRICT ACRES:  150.12



FA
R

G
O

S
T MENOKEN DR

5TH AVE NE

18
4T

H
 S

T
 N

E

HIGHWAY 10 HIGHWAY 10

17
1S

T
 S

T
 N

E
17

1S
T

 S
T

 N
E

17
1S

T
 S

T
 N

E

Map created from Burleigh County’s web mapping application. This map is for representation use only and does not represent a survey. No liability is assumed as to the accuracy of the data delineated hereon.

±
6/4/2024LOCATION MAP

BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

LEGAL: MENOKEN TOWNSHIP Section 34 N1/2 LYING SOUTH OF RR R/W 701210 34-139-78

MAIL ADDRESS: 916 E INTERSTATE AVE #6, BISMARCK, ND 58503-0560

SITE ADDRESS: 1107 NE 171ST ST

PARCEL ID: 33-139-78-00-34-220     OWNER: BURLEIGH CO SOIL CONS DISTRICT ACRES:  150.12





Left Inside Center Inside Right Inside1

1

1

1

1

1

Cropping Systems
Menoken Farm is divided into 10 fields, each 
about 12 acres. The cropping system includes no-
till seeding, high crop diversity and rotations with 
cover crop combinations seeded after harvest 
and as season-long plantings.

Gardens
Menoken Farm has a high tunnel greenhouse 
garden and outside garden. The soil health 
principles and compost are used to manage the 
gardens. Healthy, fresh produce is donated to 
the Bismarck/Mandan food pantries, in 
cooperation with the Hunger Free North Dakota 
Garden Project.

Windbreaks
A number of windbreaks have been planted and 
serve as an arboretum for information and 
education on energy, wildlife and forestry topics.

Education
With continued support from the North Dakota 
Department of Health and NRCS-USDA, Menoken 
Farm provides natural resource education. Tours 
are available from May - October and are open 
to farmers, ranchers, gardeners, Soil Conserva-
tion District employees and supervisors, NRCS 
employees, Extension Service employees, no-till 
associations and the general public. Some of the 
topics our tour participants will learn include: 
soil health principles; carbon cycle; soil function 
demonstrations; crop rotations; cover crop 
combinations; grazing systems; and gardening.

Grazing Systems
Rotational perennials are part of the crop
rotation. These fields are seeded to 21 species 
of perennial grasses, legumes and flowering 
forbs. The grazing system is managed with short 
livestock exposure periods, followed by long 
plant recovery periods. Livestock are also rotated 
to season-long cover crops, fall seeded cover 
crops and crop residue, when available. Paddock 
size is managed with single-wire electric fence. 
Each paddock is usually a half acre or larger.

Compost
Each fall compost is made from a number of 
organic materials, including common ingredients 
such as hay, straw, wood shavings, fish and 
manure. Upon completion, the compost is 
applied to available cropland and gardens.

The systems approach management enhances erosion protection, sunlight harvest, 
plant diversity, carbon, pollinators, beneficial insects, wildlife, salinity control, 
livestock forage and more

The Menoken Farm is a conservation demonstration farm located in 
central North Dakota, owned and operated by the Burleigh County 
Soil Conservation District

Advancing Soil Health through innovation and education.

Visit us at: www.menokenfarm.com



Menoken Farm was established in 
2009 and is a combination of natural 

resource education and systems 
approach conservation

Burleigh County Soil Conservation 
District, North Dakota

 The farm is owned and operated by Burleigh 
County Soil Conservation District. Additional 
financial and technical support is provided by:

• Section 319 Nonpoint Source Pollution
Control Program through the North Dakota 
Department of Health/Water Quality Division

• Natural Resources Conservation Service
(NRCS), U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA)

     After identifying a number of resource 
concerns across the Menoken Farm landscape, 
work focused on providing these basic building 
blocks to improve soil health:

 Soil armor
 Minimal soil disturbance
 Plant diversity
 Continual live plant/root
 Livestock integration

The systems approach management 
enhances erosion protection, sunlight harvest, 
plant diversity, carbon, pollinators, beneficial 
insects, wildlife, salinity control, livestock forage 
and more. 

Schedule a Menoken Farm Tour: 
  Darrell Oswald
  701-250-4518, ext. 3 
     701-391-5830
  darrell.oswald@nd.nacdnet.net
     menokenfarm@gmail.com
  www.menokenfarm.com

The Menoken Farm address is:
  Menoken Farm
     1107 171st St. N.E.
     Menoken, ND  58558

*This brochure is based upon work supported by the Natural Resources 
Conservation Service, U.S. Department of Agriculture, under number 
68-6633-16-516. USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer

Driving directions to Menoken Farm are:
• From I-94, take Menoken Exit 170
(about 10 miles east of Bismarck, ND)
• 1 mile south to Highway 10
• 1 mile east to St. Hildegard’s Church
• 1/2 mile south



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



As set forth under Chapter 11, Section 33 of the North Dakota Century Code and Article 33 of the Burleigh County Ordinances, the 
Planning Commission shall approve or disapprove the subdivision of all lands within its jurisdiction and recommend the same to the 
Board of Burleigh County Commissioners 

Agenda Item 4-2 

Application for a Special Use Permit 

Project Summary 
Public Hearing Baldwin Green House – Corn Maze 
Status: Planning and Zoning Commission – 

Consideration 
Petitioner/Developer Stoll Farms LLC – Mary Podoll 

 Address: 1725 201st Ave. NE, Baldwin, ND 
Location: Glenview Township, Section 24, W 1/2 E 

1/2 NW 1/4 Range 80 

Attachment 4-2-1 Location Map 

Project Size: 40 acres more or less 
A- Agricultural Zoning 

Petitioners Request Approval of a Special Use Permit and a “Do 
Pass” recommendation to the Board of 
Burleigh County Commissioners. 

Posted 

2-mile notification area – 132 letters 

Bismarck Tribune  6/26 & 7/1/2024 
Burleigh County Website 6/28/2024 
Surrounding Property Owners 6/28/2024 



Page 2 of 7 July 10, 2024 
Special Use Permit – Baldwin Greenhouse 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

July 10, 2024 

History/Description 

The petitioner approached Burleigh County on June 20, 2024 requesting a special use 
permit to have a commercial corn maze on the grounds of the Baldwin Greenhouse.  
The corn maze would run from August thru October.  Clark Coleman, who in the past 
has had a corn maze at the Buckstop Junction will run the maze, Friday thru Sunday.  
Stoll Farms will run the maze the remainder of the week.  There will also be a food truck, 
portable bathrooms, and a gravel parking lot.  The last person to enter the maze on any 
day will be a half hour before sunset. 

This is not the first Special Use application we have received from the petitioner.  Stoll 
Farms, LLC had originally applied for a Special Use permit to operate a corn maze, 
teaching facility with an additional building, a commercial kitchen and educational 
growing sites for attendees.  The petitioner was advised, her request does not fall under 
a special use category as the ordinance is written at this time. She was asked to wait 
with the first special use, until the ordinance is written.  She was also advised because 
she has commercial activities, although farm related, they would not fit under allowable 
uses nor special uses of Article 12 – A-Agricultural Zoning of the Burleigh County 
Ordinances.  Staff advised her to apply for a PUD.  The petitioner is part of the 
Stakeholders Group for Agri-Recreation.  

The Baldwin Greenhouse was owned and operated by the Werre family before being 
purchased by Stoll Farms in November of 2022.  The Werre family operated the 
greenhouse during the growing and planting season.  The green house was closed 
during the fall and winter months.  Stoll Farms, LLC since purchasing the greenhouse 
have held several events which include food trucks.  On Mother’s Day of 2024 for 
example over 2,000 people visited the green house and enjoyed the food available thru 
the food trucks on site.  

Starting in the Spring of 2023, Burleigh County started to receive complaints about the 
activities and the amount of people on the greenhouse property.  The concern 
expressed was that the activities being held were not agricultural in nature.  These non-
agricultural events were affecting the neighboring property and his livestock. 



Page 3 of 7 July 10, 2024 
Special Use Permit – Baldwin Greenhouse 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

July 10, 2024 

Jamie Feist is a neighbor who shares the east/west property line with the greenhouse.  
Mr. Feist and his family raise and breed deer on his property. His animals are wild and 
are not pets.  The additional activities with the food trucks alone have caused his deer to 
bolt against their pens and has caused death and miscarriage in his stock.  His pens are 
located approximately 40’ from the shared property line.  When Mr. Feist purchased his 
property in August of 2020, the greenhouse was only operational between the summer 
months and traffic was limited to those purchasing items at the greenhouse.  Food 
trucks and various activities were not held on the property.    

The most recent complaint from Mr. Feist was the encroachment on his property by the 
equipment used to seed the corn maze.  The operator of the equipment used Mr. Feist’s 
40’ buffer zone to turn around while seeding the corn maze.  The equipment caused 
damage to the plants and shrubbery Mr. Feist was trying to grow as an additional buffer 
to the deer pens on his property.   

Mr. Feist is very concerned that the additional activity of a corn maze and participants in 
the corn maze trespassing on his property to see the deer.  His male deer are just 
growing antlers and very skittish, the deer might bolt, break an antler and bleed out.  
The bolting of deer in one pen will cause a chain reaction in his other pens.  

Mr. Feist has submitted documentation with his complaints (attachment – Feist 
Documentation) 

County staff visited the site on June 28 to address Mr. Feist’s complaint and verify 
additional information on the location of the corn maze. Measurements and pictures 
were taken at this time.  (Attachment – Staff Documentation) 

Facing East 



Page 4 of 7 July 10, 2024 
Special Use Permit – Baldwin Greenhouse 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

July 10, 2024 

The request for a Special Use Permit to have a corn maze  is allow per the Burleigh 
County Zoning Ordiance Article 8 which states: 

“In order to carry out the purpose of this Article, The board of County Commissers 
finds it necessary to require that certain uses, because of unusual size, safety h
hazards, infrequent   occurrence, effect on surrounding area, or other reaseans, be 
reviewed by the County Planning and Zoning Commission and the Board of County 
Commissioners be and are hereby given limited descretionary powers relating to 
the granting of such permit or certificate.” 

The petitioner has submitted a site and operating plan for the corn maze as follows: 

Hours will be from 9:00 am with the last person entering the maze one half hour before 
sunset.  Normal operating hours are from 9:00am to 6:00pm on Monday, Tuesday, 
Thursday, Friday and Saturday.  10:00 am to 5:00pm on Sunday. 

1. The maze will operate from late August through October.
2. Clark Coleman will operate the maze Friday thru Sunday.  Stoll Farms may

run the maze the remaining days of the week or by appointment.
3. Parking will be in a gravel parking lot, located approximately 100’ feet

from the west property line. Over flow parking is not available
4. Restrooms/Porta Potties will be available and located within the

greenhouse complex.
5. The maze is located in the middle of the parcel and approx. 6 acres in size.
6. A buffer of 7 rows of corn has been planted on the west side of property.

Analysis 



Page 5 of 7 July 10, 2024 
Special Use Permit – Baldwin Greenhouse 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

July 10, 2024 

County staff visited the site on June 28, 2024.  Staff notes on the site visit 
are as follows: 

1. Measurements were taken along the west side property line to the corn
maze.  The average distance to the property line is 15’.  (see Staff
Documentation)

2. A footpath is located along the property line to the south end of the maze
on both the east and west sides of the site.

3. The buffer rows of corn run east to west.  The buffer rows should run north
to south to provide a more effective visual buffer between the maze and
the neighboring property.

 Staff Findings: 

1. The special use application fulfills the administrative requirements of Article 8,
Section 1, General Provisions.

2. Growing of corn is allowed in an A-Agricultural Zoning District
3. The operators of the corn maze will charge a fee for participation.
4. The petitioner states 400 to 2000 people could participate in the maze on any

given day.
5. The corn maze does not have a 100’ buffer between properties.
6. The maze is approximately 15’ from the east/west property line.
7. The corn maze could be considered a commercial enterprise which is not allowed

in an A-Agricultural Zoning District.

 Facing South 



Page 6 of 7 July 10, 2024 
Special Use Permit – Baldwin Greenhouse 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

July 10, 2024 

8. Operation of the corn maze does not follow the intent of Article 11 A- 
Agricultural District Regulations, Section 1 – Description which states:

a. The A-Agricultural District is established as a district in which the principal 
use of land is for general agricultural uses.  The regulations are intended to 
prohibit commercial and industrial usage of the land and to prohibit any 
other use which would interfere with the development or continuation of 
the agricultural use of the land; and to discourage any use which because 
of its character or size, would create requirements and cost to public 
services such as police and fire protection, water supply, and sewerage 
before such services can be systematically and adequately provided.  

9. Food Trucks are not considered an agricultural activity.
10. According to the “proposed“  Agri-Recreational Ordinance: operation of the corn

maze will have a size limit of 75 people per event and limited to 30 events per
year.

11. The operation of a corn maze for commercial purposes is not an allowable use in
A-Agricultural Zoned Districts.

12. Operation of the corn maze will impact the surrounding property owners use and
enjoyment of their property.

13. The application for this type Special Use Permit does not coincide with the
Burleigh County Comprehensive Plan

Planning Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends denial of the Special Use Permit as the operation of a corn maze is 
not an allowable use or special use in an A-Agricultural Zoned District.    

Planning Commission Action 

The Burleigh County Planning and Zoning Commission can: 

1. Approve the Special Use Permit and give a “Do Pass” recommendation to the
Board of County Commissioners



Page 7 of 7 July 10, 2024 
Special Use Permit – Baldwin Greenhouse 
M. McMonagle 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

July 10, 2024 

2. Approve the Special Use Permit with conditions and give a “Do Pass” after all
condition have been completed.

3. Deny the Special Use Permit with reason.
4. Table the Special Use for more information.



Attachments - Special Use Permit - Stoll Farms

























































This Page Intentionally Left Blank



ORDINANCE 24-0-------- 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND RE-ENACT ARTICLE 8 OF THE 1972 AMENDED ZONING 
ORDINANCE OF BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA RELATING TO SECTION 30 DATA 
CENTERS 

Section 1. Amendment   Article 8 of the Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended and 
re-enacted as follows:  

  SECTION 30 Data Center Facilities 

This section is adopted to allow data centers in appropriate locations in Burleigh County and 
minimize the potential off-site impacts of development and reduce long-term exposure that 
may impact the public health, safety, and the general welfare of Burleigh County residents. The 
low-frequency sounds emitted by data centers consist of long wavelengths that are not easily 
absorbed by the air or blocked by a sound barrier.  

I. DEFINITIONS  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Article and Section, shall have the 
meaning provided herein, except where the context clearly indicates otherwise:   

1. Data Center- a building, structure, complex or group of buildings and/or structures,
facility, or dedicated space within a building, structure, complex, or facility that houses
IT infrastructure, including, but not limited to, computer systems, networks, servers,
applications, appliances, services, and other associated components or facilities used for
the remote storage, processing, or transmission of digital data associated with those
computer systems, networks, servers, applications, appliances, services, and other
associated components or facilities. Associated components and facilities may also
include air handlers, water cooling and storage facilities, utility substations, and other
associated utility infrastructure to support operations. This definition also includes
cryptocurrency mining, which involves the use of blockchain technology to verify and
secure cryptocurrency transactions, as the terms “cryptocurrency”, “cryptocurrency
mining”, “blockchain”, and “blockchain technology” are defined by any applicable State
law or, if no applicable State law, by generally accepted industry standards. Data centers
are intensive land uses that can consume large quantities of water and electricity.
Buildings often include industrial HVAC systems or water cooling/storage systems to
prevent computer servers from overheating. Such systems commonly generate
continuous sound that can spread across property lines.



I. APPLICABILITY  
These regulations are for Data Center Facilities on properties and structures under the 
jurisdiction of the Burleigh County Zoning Ordinance. The installation or construction of 
a data center, or any modification to a lawfully existing data center beyond routine 
maintenance, requires a Special Use Permit and also requires a Burleigh County Building 
Permit obtained from the County Building Department. Data centers may only be 
permitted in the Industrial (I) District with a Special Use Permit. 

1. Exemption

a. Data centers which subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the North Dakota
Industrial Commission pursuant to N.D.C.C. Chapter 38-08, or any successor
statute, are exempt from the provisions of this Chapter.

2. Application Requirements

The application for the installation or construction a data center, or for modifications to 
a lawfully existing data center beyond routine maintenance, shall follow the application 
procedures for Special Use Permits Article 8 and any other procedures as may be 
required by this Ordinance for data centers, such as zoning map amendments, platting, 
or variances. In addition, applications shall include the following: 

a. Applicant name(s) and contact information. The applicant must also identify on
the application, the record owner of the property, the occupant or lessee of the
property, and the operator of the data center.

b. A narrative describing the proposed project, including a description of how the
project meets market demand, the facility’s processing capacity, and the
facility’s anticipated water and electricity needs.

c. A study prepared by an acoustical engineer that describes the anticipated noise
level of the facility and any proposed mitigation efforts such as sound walls,
baffles, ventilation silencers, etc.

d. A site plan, drawn to scale, showing the location and dimensions of all existing
and proposed structures, screening, fencing, lighting, electrical connections,
property lines, and roadway access.

e. A map of the project area showing all single-family and multi-family dwellings,
schools, churches, synagogues, and other similar religious institution or
structures, and public parks located within one (1) mile of the exterior
boundaries of the property where the data center will be located.

f. All application fees, including the required fees for a Special Use Permit and
building permits, in the amounts determined by the Board of County
Commissioners.

g. Copies of signed permits or other documentation that indicates compliance with
all applicable State and Federal laws, statutes, rules, regulatory standards,
including but not limited to the North Dakota State Electrical Board.



h. Copy of the signed electrical power purchase agreement.
i. Financial security for the following:

i. Financial security for maintenance of the data center, as fully constructed
and operational or, if the project only involves modifications to a lawfully
existing data center beyond routine maintenance as permitted by this
Ordinance, financial security for maintenance of the lawfully existing data
center as modified. The financial security shall be in the amount of 125%
of the estimated cost to maintain the data center, as fully constructed
and operational, or as modified, as determined by the applicant’s ND
State registered engineer, with such estimated costs subject to review
and approval by the Burleigh County Building Department and

ii. Financial security for reclamation and restoration of any data center and
the property on which the data center is located or, if the project only
involves modifications to a lawfully existing data center beyond routine
maintenance as permitted by this Ordinance, financial security for
reclamation and restoration of the property on which the data center as
modified is located. Reclamation and restoration shall include, but is not
limited to, the removal and disposal of all above-ground structures,
underground structures, and utilities to depth of four feet, and the
removal and disposal of all other facilities, structures, equipment, and
materials on or under the property. The financial security shall be in the
amount of 125% of the estimated cost to reclaim and restore property on
which the data center, or the data center as modified, is located as
determined by the applicant’s ND State registered engineer, with such
estimated costs subject to review and approval of the Burleigh County
Building Department. Any financial security provided by the applicant
which is required by this Chapter shall be subject to review and approval
by the County and be in the form of one or more of the following:

iii. an irrevocable letter of credit issued by an FDIC insured financial
institution authorized to do business in the State of North Dakota to be
effective beginning on the date that installation and/or construction of,
or the approved modifications to, the data center start and provides for
annual automatic renewals continuing to the date when full reclamation
and restoration is complete as approved by the County;

iv. a surety bond which is effective beginning on the date that installation
and/or construction of, or the approved modifications to, the data center
start and provides for annual automatic renewals continuing to the date
when full reclamation and restoration is complete as approved by the
County; and/or;

i. cash in escrow to be held in trust by Burleigh County effective beginning
on the date that installation and/or construction of, or the approved
modifications to, the data center start and continuing to the date when
full reclamation and restoration is complete as approved by the County.
The financial security required above shall be provided to Burleigh



County prior to commencement of any work to install and/or construct 
the data center, or to modify a lawfully existing data center beyond 
routine maintenance, but no later than the date determined by the Board 
of County Commissioners in approving the data center or in approving 
the modifications to a lawfully existing data center beyond routine 
maintenance. 

j. Other relevant studies, reports, certifications, or approvals as may be required
by the County to ensure compliance with this Chapter and this Ordinance. 

II. Prohibitions:

The County prohibits data center facilities located within:
a. All Floodplain Districts and Designated SFHA Areas.

III. Design Standards

1. Data centers shall be set back at least one (1) mile from all single-family and multi-family
dwellings, schools, churches, synagogues, and other similar religious institution or
structures, and public parks as measured from the nearest property line of any of these
sensitive properties to the data center’s exterior property lines.

2. Separation from other data centers. New data centers shall be set back at least three (3)
miles from any lawfully existing data center.

3. Height. All buildings, structures, and appurtenances on the property where the data
center will be located shall meet the height requirements of the Industrial I district in
this Ordinance.

4. Electrical wiring. All electrical wiring shall be buried underground, except where wiring is
brought together for interconnection to system components or the local utility power
grid, provided that all electrical wiring shall comply with the North Dakota State
Electrical Board, and any of its rules and regulations.

5. Security fencing. A secured chain link or solid wood or masonry fence at least six (6) feet
in height shall be constructed and maintained around the entire perimeter of the facility
to prevent unauthorized entry onto the property or into the facility. Any fencing shall
comply with the Development Standards in this Ordinance.

6. Buffering and screening. Landscaped buffers shall be required around the entire
perimeter of the property where the data center is located in accordance with the
requirements of this Ordinance.

7. All outdoor light fixtures shall be installed in a manner intended to limit the amount of
off-site impacts.  Light fixtures located near adjacent properties may require special
shielding devices to prevent light trespass.

8. Accessory structures and appurtenances. All accessory structures or appurtenances,
including those constructed for noise mitigation, shall be designed in a manner that is
complementary with the primary building(s) and shall be finished in a non-obtrusive
color.



9. Roads. All adjacent exterior access roads serving a data center shall conform to the
Development Standards in this Ordinance and Article 33. Exterior road construction or
improvements shall be subject to approval by the Burleigh County Highway Engineer or
their designee. A road maintenance agreement with any government entity having
jurisdiction over the adjacent exterior access roads shall be required during installation
or construction of the data center, or during modification of a lawfully existing data
center beyond routine maintenance. All interior roads serving the data center shall be
subject to review by the Burleigh County Fire Department to ensure safe and adequate
access for emergency response vehicles.

10. Storm Drainage, Erosion Control, Grading, Drainage and Stormwater Management
Permit for the data center shall comply with the requirements in Article 33 of this
Ordinance.

11. Development Agreement. The applicant and, if different than the applicant, the record
owner of the property, the occupant or lessee of the property, and/or the operator of
the data center and of the property on which the data center will be located, as
determined appropriate by Burleigh County, must sign a development agreement which
shall include provisions related to, but are not limited to, the posting and use of financial
security, exterior and interior road construction or improvement, road maintenance,
improvements related to storm drainage, erosion control, grading, and drainage,
reclamation and restoration, and/or any other condition imposed by this Chapter, this
Ordinance, or the Board of County Commissioners in approving installation of
construction of the data center or modifications to a lawfully existing data center
beyond routine maintenance.

IV. Decommissioning Plan:

It is the responsibility of the original applicant, or if different, the record owner of the
property, the occupant or lessee of the property, and the operator of the data center to
notify Burleigh County in writing, at least six (6) months in advance, of the intent to
abandon or cease operations of the data center. Any data center that is not operated
for a continuous period of six (6) months shall automatically be considered abandoned,
and Burleigh County may require the original applicant, or if different, the record
owner of the property, the occupant or lessee of the property, and the operator of the
data center to reclaim and restore the property within ninety (90) days after written
notice to reclaim and restore the property from Burleigh County. Any such reclamation
and restoration shall include, but is not limited to, removal and disposal of all above-

 ground structures, underground structures, and utilities to depth of four feet, and 
removal and disposal of all other facilities, structures, equipment, and materials on or 
under the property. If the property is not fully reclaimed and restored as required by 
this Article within ninety (90) days after written notice from Burleigh County, the County 
may reclaim and restore the property, or cause the property to be reclaimed and 
restored, including, but not limited to, removal and disposal of all above-ground 
structures, underground  structures, and utilities to depth of four feet, and removal and 
disposal of all other facilities, structures, equipment, and materials on or under the 



property and recover costs directly from the original applicant, or if different, the 
record owner of the property, the occupant or lessee of the property, and/or the 
operator of the data center. Burleigh County may also, in its discretion, recover such 
costs, by access to and use of the financial security  provided and on file for the data 
center, or by lien or special assessment, or any other remedy, authorized by law or 
the Development Agreement entered into under this Article. Nothing in this Article is 
intended to impose a mandatory obligation on Burleigh County to reclaim and restore 
the property. 

Article 18, I-Industrial Zoning District, the following regulations shall apply: 

1. Special Uses Permitted.  The following Special Uses are allowed as per Article 8
Section 30 hereof:

a. Data Center Facilities

Section 2. Repeal.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance 
are hereby repealed.  

Section 3. Severability.  If any section provision or part of this ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional such adjudication shall not affect 
the validity of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or  
part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional.  

 Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect after final passage, adoption 
and publication as provided by law. 

First Reading Passed:  ______________________________________ 

Passed and adopted this ________ day of ____________________, 2024 

_______________________________________________________ 
Brian Bitner, Chairperson 

Final passage and adoption:  

I, Mark Splonskowski, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected auditor of the County of 
Burleigh, State of North Dakota, and that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of an 
ordinance adopted by the Board of Burleigh County Commissioners at its regular meeting of 
________day of ______________________, 2024 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF: I have hereto set my hand and seal of Burleigh County this _______ day 
of ____________________, 2024 

__________________________________________  
Mark Splonskowski, Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



Page 1 of 5 

  ORDINANCE 24-0--------  

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND RE-ENACT ARTICLE 8 OF THE 1972 
AMENDED ZONING ORDINANCE OF BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH 
DAKOTA RELATING TO SECTION 31 ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS 

Section 1.  Amendment   Article 8 of the Zoning Ordinance is hereby 
amended and re-enacted as follows:  

  Section 31 Accessory Dwelling Units 

To provide for a broader range of housing options, efficient use of existing infrastructure and 
housing stock, and preserve the character of existing single-family neighborhoods. accessory 
dwelling unit to a single-family dwelling is permitted as a special use within any R1 – Rural 
Residential, and A – Agricultural zoning district subject to all requirements of the Burleigh 
County Ordinances, unless otherwise stated within this section.  

  Definitions The following definitions represent the meanings of terms 
as they are used in these regulations: 

Accessory Dwelling Unit: A separate and complete dwelling unit established in 
conjunction with and ancillary to, the principal single-family dwelling unit, 
whether within the same structure as the principal unit or within a detached 
accessory structure on the same lot or parcel. An accessory dwelling unit contains 
one bedroom, kitchen and bathroom facilities, and a separate exterior entrance.  

Accessory Use: A use or structure that is clearly incidental to and customarily 
found in connection with a principal structure or use; is ancillary in purpose to the 
principal building or uses; contributes to the comfort, convenience or necessity of 
occupants of the principal use; and is located on the same lot as the principal 
structure.  

Building-Accessory: A permanent, or semi-permanent, ancillary building or 
structure, the use of which is customarily incidental to that of a principal building 
on the same lot, including, without limitation, garages, storage sheds, playhouses, 
kennels, statuary, trellises, barbecue stoves, residential greenhouses, tent-like 
structures, or similar structures, storm or civil defense shelter, radio towers, 
satellite receiving or transmitting stations or antennas, and other structures, 
towers, antenna, ornaments or devices 



Page 2 of 5 

Special Uses. In order to carry out the purposes of this section, the Board of Burleigh County 
Commissioners find it necessary to require that certain uses, because of unusual size, safety 
hazards, infrequent occurrence, effect on surrounding area, or other reasons, be reviewed by the 
Burleigh County Planning and Zoning Commission prior to the granting of a building permit or 
certificate of occupancy and that the Burleigh County Planning and Zoning Commission and the 
Zoning Administrator (where allowed) are hereby given limited discretionary powers relating to 
the granting of such a permit or certificate. 

1. Applicability:

An accessory dwelling unit to a single-family dwelling is permitted as a special use within
any R1 Rural Residential and A – Agricultural zoning district subject to all requirements of
the Burleigh County Zoning Ordinances,

2. Requirements for All Accessory Dwelling Units. Prior to receiving a special use permit an
applicant shall demonstrate that the following requirements will be met:
a. No more than one accessory dwelling unit may be permitted on each lot or parcel.
b. An accessory dwelling unit must be contained completely within the principal

structure on the lot or parcel, or contained within an accessory structure that meets
all requirements of this Code, including size and setback requirements of the
underlying zoning district. The height of any accessory structure containing an
accessory dwelling unit may be up to twenty-five (25) feet.

c. The principal or accessory dwelling unit must be occupied by the owner of the subject
parcel as a legal residence for more than six (6) months of any given year. The home
may not be owned by a corporation, but the owner-occupant may be a benefited
person in a private trust or life estate. The owner-occupancy requirement applies to
the applicant as well as all subsequent owners of the property.

d. At least one off-street parking space shall be provided for an accessory dwelling, in
addition to any parking required for the principal dwelling unit on the lot. However,
in such cases where existing conditions render additional parking infeasible, the
applicant may submit a parking plan to demonstrate how on-street facilities or other
methods are sufficient to meet anticipated parking demand, such as the dwelling unit
being reserved for a class or individual who does not need to store a personal vehicle
on-site.

3. Size requirements.
a. No accessory dwelling unit may include more than one (1) bedroom.
b. Units within Principal Structure: The floor area of an accessory dwelling unit may not

exceed forty percent (40%) of the gross floor area of the principal structure,
excluding any attached garage, and may not be greater than 800 square feet or less
than 300 square feet.



Page 3 of 5 

c. Units within Accessory Structure: The floor area of an accessory dwelling unit may
not be greater than 800 square feet or less than 300 square feet on any lot or parcel
five (5) acres in area or less. The floor area of an accessory dwelling unit may be up
to 1,200 square feet on any lot or parcel that is greater than five (5) acres in area.

d. An accessory dwelling unit on any lot or parcel that does not conform to the
minimum lot size requirement of the underlying zoning district may only be
permitted inside the principal building.

e. To protect the privacy of neighbors, rooftop decks and  balconies are not allowed
within 25 feet of a neighboring property.

f. An accessory dwelling unit must be connected to public utilities if available on the
lot or parcel. If the lot is serviced by an on-site septic system, the applicant must
show that sufficient sewage treatment capacity will be available to meet anticipated
needs.

g. An accessory dwelling unit must comply with all residential building code
requirements as defined by Article 22 and Article 23 of the Burleigh County Zoning
Ordinance.

h. An accessory dwelling unit may be occupied by no more than one family, as defined
by Article 3 of the Burleigh County Zoning Ordinance.

4. Methods of Creation. A new accessory dwelling unit may be created in any of the
following ways:
a. Conversion of a portion of an existing principal or accessory structure into a separate

accessory dwelling unit.
b. Expansion of an existing structure that is in compliance with all setback, lot

coverage, and height requirements of the underlying zoning district.
c. Construction of a new structure containing a single-family dwelling unit with an

internal accessory dwelling unit.
d. Construction of a new detached accessory structure containing a dwelling unit on a

lot with an existing principal structure.
e. Reuse of a non-conforming second dwelling unit within a residence that has ceased

to be continuously utilized as a dwelling unit and thus does not qualify as a non-
conforming use.

5. Special Use Permit Submittal Requirements. The following documents shall be
submitted with any application for a special use permit to allow an accessory dwelling
unit:
a. A building plan that demonstrates compliance with all requirements of the

residential building code.
b. For all new construction of an accessory structure, a site plan is required. The site

plan must show, to scale, the location and dimensions of the building, all required
setbacks, and any easements on the property.



Page 4 of 5 

c. For all accessory dwelling units that would be served by an on-site septic system,
documentation to provide compliance with Article 24 is required.

6. Termination of Special Use Permit. A special use permit for an accessory dwelling shall
automatically expire:
a. If the permitted accessory dwelling unit is substantially altered and is no longer in

conformance with these provisions,
b. The owner of the property no longer occupies one of the units,
c. The required parking is no longer maintained and available for use by the occupant,
d. Or the permit is not put to use within twenty-four (24) months from date of approval.

Section 2    Repeal All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this 
ordinance are  hereby repealed.   

Section 3.   Severability If any section provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional such as adjudication shall not affect the 
validity of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or  
part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

Section 4.   Effective Date This ordinance shall take effect after final passage, adoption and 
publication as provided by law 

First Reading Passed:  

Passed and adopted this ________ day of ____________________, 2024 

_____________________________________________ 
Brian Bitner                                         Chairperson  

Final passage and adoption:  

I, Mark Splonskowski, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected auditor of 
the County of Burleigh, State of North Dakota, and that the foregoing is a 
full, true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the Board of Burleigh 



Page 5 of 5 

County Commissioners at its regular meeting of 
______________________________  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: I have hereto set my hand and seal of Burleigh 
County this _______ day of ____________________, 2024  

__________________________________________  
Mark Splonskowski, Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 



July 12, 2024

Mark Splonskowski, County Auditor		 	 	 	 	 

Brian Bitner, Burleigh County Commissioner Chaiperson


Regarding:  Appeal to action by Planning and zoning to deny Special Permit


Dear leaders, 


This letter, delivered to you by email today, July 12, 2024 is a notice of appeal regarding the 
Planning and Zoning Committion’s decision regarding our request for a corn maze. 


I will include some information with this email in support of my request to allow a corn maze in 
Burleigh County at the Stoll Farms/Baldwin Greenhouse & Nursery, however it is my 
understanding that I will have the opportunity to  provide additional information at the appeal 
meeting.  


Planning and zoning staff have approached me about the vision that my family has for this 
property upon purchase due to a complaint from a neighboring property.  It is my 
understanding from previous owners, this complaining by this neighbor was fairly regular.  

Mitch Flanagan suggested that int he spirit of being neighborly, I should request a special 
permit for some of the planned agriculture activities.  


I did turn in this request in May, I think.  But concurrently, there has been work on language for 
special permits.  


Attachment A is a copy of the current Special permit language.  It has no reference to corn 
mazes, pick your own produce activities, farmers markets or on farm sales of products.  


Attachment B is the current language moving forward. 


This special permit language and the lack of the staff to acknowledge the input from those 
stakeholders impacted by such language caused me great concern so I verbally asked to 
withdraw that request and focused solely on a Corn maze.  In working with Farmer Clark 
Coleman, there has not been a requirement in the past and he suggested I not ask for 
permission.  I beleive we were already down the road, and was fearful that the don’t ask, beg 
for forgivess was not the right approach.  


The Corn Maze is on agriculture land, zoned ag land at 1725 201st ave NE Baldwin ND.  You 
may know it better as the Baldwin Greenhouse & Nursery.  The Greenhouse business is also 
considered ag, but is contained to the north 8-9 acres.  The remaining property has been 
cropped, hayed or grazed.  The area of where corn is planted is considered by USDA to be 
cropland - and if we were USDA participants we would meet Highly erodible land and 
swampbuster rules.  


The area will not be impacted by traffic as the Greenhouse has already demonstrated capacity 
of over 1000  people ( I might say 2000 on busiest of days).  Gravel parking lots can easily 
accomodate 100 vehicles, and there is also secondary parking on gravel throughout the 
greenhouse.  


This issue at hand and the reason for denial, my understanding, is that one nieghbor says that 
we adversely impact his right to raise confined livestock - in his case, whitetail deer.  




July 12, 2024

Whether or not the planning and zoning staff had the authority to recommend a special permit 
process is a mute point now.  


My ask is approval to host a corn maze on the Stoll Farm/Baldwin Greenhouse property.  

Impact to infrastructure is minimal, the site has adequate parking and facilities and is an 
excellent opportunity to highligh agriculture in the community.  It is my observation that people 
in Burleigh County would enjoy such an event.  


I recognize my neighbors right to raise whitetail deer. I even tip toe around them while doing 
agriculture activies like planting trees, managing weeds and considering fencing options. 


In reading information on line about whitetail deer, most all sites included the value to creating 
good relationships.  This is also my value, which is why I introduced my self and family to our 
neighbors with a nice bag of Christmas hot chocolate and our contact information.  

The neighbor with the deer made no effort after that time to continue disucssion or share his 
concerns about noise or ask to share the cost of a fence.  With our focus on geeting the 
greenhouse running, asking our neighbors about fencing was not a priorty. 


In late March or April, with snow still on the ground (2022 - 2023), the family finally got a 
chance to wak past the greenhouses to the south 1/2 of the property.  Two people walking in 
the pasture to check out grasses, weeds, look at the creek for fishing opportunities and 
camping!  That was when Jamie came across their pasture yelling at them.  Later that day he 
and his wife finally came by crying and telling my family they had killed or damaged a deer.  It 
was very confrontational.  In my opionion they had ample time to create communication. 


We have been visited several times by the planning and zoning staff as well as the sheriff’s 
department for going about our own business. 


I would ask that this neighbor to neighbor dispute not be basis of simply saying no to what I 
view as an acceptable practice, an activitiy that the community wants and is a awesome brigde 
of community and agriculture. 


Had he asked, we would have gladly worked to compromise a barrier fence.  For example, 
there are portable windbreak panel strucutres that could be used as a model in critical places 
on our property boundary.  Where there is deer to human viewscape, it would be our 
responsibility to build or finance.  


Signage by neighbor is clear to customers, however, I am agreeable to adding more sign posts 
along his designated property line.  


Attachment C is my recommendation


My request is a do pass for a special permit to have a corn maze, or an acknowledgment that 
there is not current requirement for such.  If asked about  applying for a PUD, please note that 
it was the special permit process recommended to me by staff.  

Thank you for allowing me the appeals process and consideration for a change in decision


Mary Podoll, representative and family

Stoll Farms LLC/Baldwin Greenhouse & Nursery

701-255-0736

Mark Splonskowski
Line



Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

















































































































 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 7 



 

BURLEIGH COUNTY 
HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 

8100 43RD AVENUE NE 
BISMARCK, ND 58503 

             701-204-7748 
            FAX 701-204-7749 

            www.burleighco.com 
 

Request for County Board Action 
 
DATE: August 5, 2024         
   
TO:  Mark Splonskowski  
  County Auditor 
  
FROM: Marcus J. Hall 
  County Engineer 
   
RE:  2025 Budget Adjustments  
 
Please include this item on the next Burleigh County Board agenda. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
Review proposed changes to the 2025 Budget and direct the Highway Department on 
how to proceed.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
During the July 15, 2024 County Board Meeting the Board directed the Highway 
Department to change their 2025 Proposed Budget expenditures to match their 2024 
Approved Budget expenditures and then adjust their 2025 revenues to balance the 
2025 budget.  With this direction, the Highway Department budget (expenditures and 
revenues) will increase from $14,127,876 to $16,482,488 (an increase of $2,354,612).  
In addition, the Board directed the Highway Department to eliminate any mill levy 
increase (over the approved 2024 level of 3.613 mills) shown in the proposed 2025 
budget and replace additional mill levy revenues ($2,798,800) with Legacy Funds, 
Highway Department Savings, General Fund transfer, or Prairie Dog Funds.  The total 
increase in revenues required for the 2025 Proposed budget is $5,153,412 coming from 
the following sources: 
 
Legacy Fund:    $1,041,296 (half of our allotment)    
Highway Department Savings:  $1,000,000 
General Fund Transfer:   $1,188,504 
Selling of existing Equipment:     $50,000 
Prairie Dog Funds:     $1,873,612 (Used on Construction Projects) 
 Total     $5,153,412 

 



 
Budget Expenditures: 
Expenditures covered by multiple funds  $2,798,800 
Motor grader        $481,000 
Construction Projects*    $1,873,612 
       $5,153,412 
 
*Microsurfacing of 71st Ave NE from US83 to Centennial Road.  Centennial Road from 
71st Ave NE to Jericho Road.  66th Street SE from County Highway 10 to Lincoln Road. 
 
*Mill and overlay of County Highway 10 from 236th Street SE to US83. (Fed/Local: 
80%/20%) 
 
*Chip seal of County Highway 10 from 66th Street SE to US83. (Fed/Local: 80%/20%) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the County Board review the proposed changes and direct staff 
on how to proceed.   
        
 



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 9 



1 

BURLEIGH COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Burleigh County 
316 N. 5th St 

Bismarck, ND 58501 
701-712-8353

REQUEST FOR COUNTY BOARD ACTION 
DATE: August 5th, 2024 
TO: Mark Splonskowski, County Auditor 
RE: Amendment to the Preliminary Budget 

Please Include this item in the next Burleigh County Board agenda packet. 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Amend the Preliminary Budget to show the general fund tax levy as $21,805,080 with any budget deficit 
funded by utilizing general fund reserves. Amend the Preliminary Budget to show the County Road & 
Bridge fund tax levy as $2,413,491 with any budget deficit funded by utilizing a combination of sources 
as identified by the County Engineer. 

BACKGROUND: 

The County Commission voted on July 15th 2024 to accept the Preliminary Budget presented by the 
County Auditor with various changes as discussed at the meeting. The County Commission discussed 
funding the budget without raising taxes. The only mechanism available to do this is to use reserves. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the County Board adopt the below proposed resolution. 

PROPOSED RESOLUTION: 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That the Burleigh County Board of Commissioners do hereby amend the 
Preliminary Budget to levy $21,805,080 in property taxes in the general fund and to utilize $4,802,392 in 
general fund reserves to fund the difference between budgeted revenues and budgeted expenditures in 
the general fund, and to levy $2,413,491 in property taxes in the County Road & Bridge fund and to use 
various non-property tax means to fund the difference between the budgeted revenues and budgeted 
expenditures in this fund as identified by the County Engineer.   



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
  PRELIMINARY BUDGET 2025 

GENERAL FUND 

 

 

GENERAL FUND REVENUES
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ESTIMATE BUDGET CHANGE
TAXES 13,146,683$ 14,588,484$           20,956,366$          20,560,000$            20,560,000$      (396,366)$           
IN LIEU OF TAXES 28,982         32,899                   32,000                  46,000                    33,000              1,000                    
LICENSES 11,275         11,195                   12,000                  12,000                    11,500              (500)                      
PERMITS 180,792        112,483                 180,000                 115,000                  112,000            (68,000)                
FEDERAL IN LIEU 41,994         44,995                   91,000                  48,000                    45,000              (46,000)                
STATE GRANTS & FEES 190,476        229,576                 175,000                 175,000                  175,000            -                        
STATE AID DISTRIBUTION 4,237,562     4,822,093              4,328,109              4,490,000               4,413,000         84,891                  
HOMESTEAD CREDIT 187,875        201,967                 218,000                 422,000                  253,000            35,000                  
REIMBURSEMENTS 585,062        23,630                   113,400                 25,000                    114,000            600                        
COUNTY COURT 25,907         25,991                   25,000                  25,000                    25,000              -                        
COUNTY RECORDER 575,645        435,854                 525,000                 420,000                  420,000            (105,000)              
COUNTY AUDITOR 19,339         16,917                   20,000                  10,000                    10,000              (10,000)                
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 78,695         98,911                   75,000                  80,000                    91,000              16,000                  
STATES ATTORNEY 101              920                       500                       500                        500                  -                        
COUNTY SHERIFF 561,033        392,141                 422,000                 560,000                  539,000            117,000               
SOC SRV MISC 811,505        802,032                 550,000                 800,000                  196,000            (354,000)              
DETENTION 3,183,577     4,177,877              5,043,778              4,770,000               4,706,000         (337,778)              
INTEREST (85,703)        1,556,965              1,113,000              1,800,000               1,460,000         347,000               
RENT (MUNI COURT) 10,848         10,848                   35,000                  35,000                    35,000              -                        
SALE OF ASSETS -                  80                         10,000                  1,000                     1,000                (9,000)                  
MISC. 112,939        111,500                 111,500                 40,000                    40,000              (71,500)                

SUBTOTAL 23,904,587   27,697,356             34,036,653            34,434,500             33,240,000        (796,653)           

TRANSFER IN 1,035,646     342,354                 322,700                 322,700                  1,322,700         1,322,700         

  TOTAL 24,940,233$ 28,039,709$           34,359,353$          34,757,200$            34,562,700$      526,047$          

 

 



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
  PRELIMINARY BUDGET 2025 

GENERAL FUND 

 

Continued 

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ESTIMATE BUDGET CHANGE
COUNTY BOARD 428,212$      468,236$               585,809$               585,809$                642,351$          56,542$               
JUVENILLE COURT 313,317        260,599                 300,000                 300,000                  300,000            -                        
AUDITOR / TREASURER 694,648        742,788                 821,955                 818,055                  856,965            35,010                  
ELECTIONS 522,746        225,686                 536,000                 536,000                  143,500            (392,500)              
TAX EQUALIZATION 426,454        426,213                 513,973                 499,474                  550,034            36,061                  
RECORDER 359,258        422,021                 458,121                 458,121                  525,505            67,384                  
HUMAN RESOURCES 442,538        573,340                 651,573                 651,573                  797,129            145,556               
PLANNING 379,023        415,939                 422,291                 422,291                  596,526            174,235               
INFO TECH DEPARTMENT 3,913           159,252                 360,701                 340,000                  602,987            242,286               
INCOME MAINTENANCE 650,944        671,044                 538,500                 -                         -                   (538,500)              
CRTHSE BLDG & GRDS 946,163        469,729                 534,311                 534,311                  2,209,689         1,675,378            
CITY/COUNTY BUILDING 112,734        225,686                 221,581                 221,581                  221,581            -                        
SUPT. OF SCHOOLS 72,000         72,000                   75,000                  75,000                    79,000              4,000                    
PUBLISHING & PRINTING 13,675         16,367                   15,000                  15,000                    15,000              -                        
SUPPLIES 12,173         12,232                   12,000                  12,000                    12,000              -                        
TELEPHONE & POSTAGE 124,834        133,786                 132,500                 132,500                  134,000            1,500                    
TECHNOLOGY 93,656         112,788                 156,100                 156,100                  156,100            -                        
AUDIT FEES 74,500         35,000                   -                        -                         -                   -                        
INSURANCE 165,242        172,571                 200,000                 200,000                  200,000            -                        
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 170,973        169,584                 353,344                 187,343                  356,335            2,991                    
AMBULANCE 1,500           1,500                     1,500                    1,500                     1,500                -                        
YOUTH BUREAU 66,777         87,781                   93,444                  93,444                    93,444              -                        
PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR 6,300           6,300                     6,300                    6,300                     25,000              18,700                  
STATES ATTORNEY 2,800,863     3,335,237              4,940,294              4,278,467               5,895,670         955,376               
VICTIM/WITNESS ADVOCATE 424,001        515,137                 576,397                 576,397                  634,891            58,494                  
SHERIFF 6,744,396     7,300,764              8,578,422              8,000,000               9,370,952         792,530                



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
  PRELIMINARY BUDGET 2025 

GENERAL FUND 

 

 

YOUTH BUREAU 66,777          87,781                     93,444                    93,444                     93,444               -                         
PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR 6,300            6,300                       6,300                      6,300                       25,000               18,700                  
STATES ATTORNEY 2,800,863     3,335,237                4,940,294               4,278,467                 5,895,670          955,376                
VICTIM/WITNESS ADVOCATE 424,001        515,137                   576,397                  576,397                    634,891             58,494                  
SHERIFF 6,744,396     7,300,764                8,578,422               8,000,000                 9,370,952          792,530                

2022 2023 2024 2024 2025
ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ESTIMATE BUDGET CHANGE

DETENTION CENTER 9,048,356     9,864,749                11,836,104             11,000,000               12,626,404        790,300                
PUBLIC HEALTH 214,249        295,418                   300,000                  300,000                    582,201             282,201                
BOAT RAMPS 37,923          43,512                     41,747                    41,747                     161,500             119,753                
KIMBALL BOTTOMS BOAT RAMP 18,795          19,633                     23,433                    23,433                     46,500               23,067                  
MITCHELL LAKE/ DRISCOLL SIBLEY 3,741            8,429                       10,300                    10,300                     16,500               6,200                    
CITY RECREATION 280,407        306,992                   335,000                  335,000                    335,105             105                        
ADVERTISING 80,638          83,389                     -                          - 98,235               98,235                  
COMMUNICATIONS CENTER 675,241        658,578                   897,149                  658,578                    917,288             20,139                  
ABANDONED CEMETERY 9,440            10,915                     9,500                      9,500                       11,200               1,700                    

SUBTOTAL 26,419,630   28,323,194              34,538,349             31,479,824               39,215,092        4,676,743          

TRANSFER OUT 550,000        118,640                   350,000                  350,000                    150,000             (200,000)              

TOTAL 26,969,630$  28,441,833$            34,888,349$           31,829,824$             39,365,092$      4,476,743$        

Estimated Budget Revenue over (under) Budgeted Expenditures (4,802,392)$       

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance, January 1 2025 19,546,308        

Estimated Ending Balance, December 31 2025 14,743,916$      

Appropriation for General Government 39,365,092$             

Plus Delinquent Taxes 607,903                    

Plus Estimated Reserve Fund Balance, Dec 31, 2025 14,743,916               

Less: Resources 32,911,831               

21,805,080$      



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
PRELIMINARY BUDGET 2025 

COUNTY ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND 

 

 

COUNTY ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND REVENUES
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ESTIMATE BUDGET CHANGE
MH & RE TAX $2,144,300 $2,337,484 $2,292,816 $2,292,816 $4,976,966 2,684,150$ 
IN LIEU OF TAXES 4,706                   5,289                3,300                 3,300                 5,000                1,700            
PERMITS 55,559                  70,217              79,500               79,500               75,500              (4,000)          
STATE AID DISTRIBUTION 8,925                   10,277              6,500                 6,500                 9,000                2,500            
HOMESTEAD CREDIT 29,875                  32,240              16,900               16,900               20,000              3,100            
OPERATING GRANT -                          1,440,785          -                        -                        -                       -                     
CTY RD WORK-POL SUBS 2,245,752             2,423,417          1,778,610           1,778,610           1,598,610          (180,000)      
CTY RD WORK-STATE -                          -                       -                        -                        -                       -                     
CTY RD WORK-FEDERAL 3,000,000             -                       -                        -                        -                       -                     
CTY RD WORK-MISC 4,905                   13,177              3,000                 3,000                 5,000                2,000            
SERVICE WORK 101                      44                     -                        -                        -                       -                     
INTEREST EARNINGS 2,246                   21,833              -                        -                        10,000              10,000          
SALE OF ASSETS 342,339                -                       30,000               30,000               365,400             335,400       
FUEL 3,482                   3,047                1,200                 1,200                 1,200                -                     
OTHER MISC REVENUE 104,916                855,209             18,850               18,850               31,350              12,500          

SUBTOTAL 7,947,106             7,213,018          4,230,676           4,230,676           7,098,026          2,867,350   

TRANSFER IN 6,560,950             10,016,087        12,251,812         12,251,812         7,050,000          7,050,000   

TOTAL 14,508,056$          17,229,105$      16,482,488$       16,482,488$       14,148,026$      9,917,350$  

 



PRELIMINARY BUDGET 2025 
COUNTY ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND 

 
 

Continued 

COUNTY ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND EXPENSES
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ESTIMATE BUDGET CHANGE
SALARIES 3,523,750$           3,198,084$        3,805,284$         3,805,284$         3,805,284$        -$                   
TEMPORARY SERVICES 19,477                  -                       10,000               10,000               10,000              -                     
FRINGE BENEFITS 1,277,204             1,355,977          1,690,319           1,690,319           1,794,228          103,909       
WORKMENS COMP 69,359                  32,442              75,000               75,000               75,000              -                     
UNEMPLOYMENT COMP 2,743                   200                   20,000               20,000               20,000              -                     
ENGINEERING SUPPLIES 9,342                   7,158                15,000               15,000               12,500              (2,500)          
INSURANCE 91,822                  111,804             100,000             100,000             115,000             15,000          
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 25,480                  26,280              25,000               25,000               25,000              -                     
TRAVEL-LODGING-MEALS 9,670                   5,029                10,000               10,000               10,000              -                     
UTILITIES 162,415                189,747             190,000             190,000             210,000             20,000          
ORGANIZATIONAL DUES 1,775                   631                   2,000                 2,000                 1,500                (500)              
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 470,757                555,983             475,000             475,000             540,000             65,000          
COUNTY SERVICES -                          -                       -                        -                        -                       -                     
OFFICE SUPPLIES 24,241                  27,043              30,000               30,000               30,000              -                     
SHOP SUPPLIES 47,563                  67,861              60,000               60,000               70,000              10,000          
CONSTRUCTION SUPPLIES 1,512                   3,162                25,000               25,000               20,000              (5,000)          
GAS OIL & FUEL 726,193                662,461             500,000             500,000             600,000             100,000       
BUILDING MAINTENANCE 119,750                100,740             120,000             120,000             180,000             60,000          
COMPUTER SERVICES 48,820                  54,497              60,000               60,000               70,000              10,000          
GIS 15,017                  14,426              17,000               17,000               20,000              3,000            
RADIO SERVICE AGREEMENT 6,969                   269,512             10,000               10,000               10,000              -                     
SIGNING 42,823                  37,666              50,000               50,000               45,000              (5,000)          
SALT SAND 23,055                  24,889              80,000               80,000               50,000              (30,000)        
FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 7,472                   20,158              90,000               90,000               70,000              (20,000)        
MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 1,436,552             1,391,701          1,770,000           1,770,000           1,640,000          (130,000)      
CRACK POURING 68,360                  38,228              75,000               75,000               50,000              (25,000)        
CUTTING EDGES 24,015                  92,552              35,000               35,000               90,000              55,000          
CULVERTS & BRIDGES 11,064                  5,522                70,000               70,000               40,000              (30,000)        



PRELIMINARY BUDGET 2025 
COUNTY ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND 

 
 

 

2022 2023 2024 2024 2025
ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ESTIMATE BUDGET CHANGE

RIGHT OF WAY -                          -                       30,000               30,000               15,000              (15,000)        
GRAVELING & CRUSHING 459,355                304,315             458,701             458,701             758,164             299,463       
VEGETATION CONTROL 3,750                   4,100                4,000                 4,000                 4,000                -                     
DUST CONTROL 137,026                124,215             140,000             140,000             100,000             (40,000)        
COUNTY WORK - IMPROVEMENTS 905,370                7,371,469          3,985,718           3,985,718           2,354,612          (1,631,106)  
COUNTY WORK - MAINTENANCE 1,071,809             314,553             225,000             225,000             550,000             325,000       
STATE ARPA FUNDS 500,000                -                       -                        -                        -                       -                     
CENTERLINE STRIPING 227,263                260,569             290,000             290,000             275,000             (15,000)        
COLD PATCHING MIX 367,942                391,189             500,000             500,000             500,000             -                     
GRAVEL HAULING 334,393                520,666             382,000             382,000             352,000             (30,000)        
BRIDGE INSPECTION 16,088                  17,945              50,000               50,000               50,000              -                     
BISMARCK SHOP 18,669                  1,300                20,000               20,000               20,000              -                     
MPO DUES & COST SHARING 3,004                   19,345              20,000               20,000               8,000                (12,000)        
CONTINUING EDUCATION 11,600                  7,207                9,000                 9,000                 7,500                (1,500)          
EMERGENCY FUND -                          -                       -                        -                        -                       -                     
TIRES 72,184                  71,740              90,000               90,000               90,000              -                     
SAFETY 51,810                  42,559              45,000               45,000               45,000              -                     
911 SIGNING -                          -                       -                        -                        -                       -                     
20% OF TAXES TO CITIES -                          -                       -                        -                        -                       -                     
BILLABLE MAINTENANCE WORK -                          -                       -                        -                        600,000             600,000       

SUBTOTAL 12,449,488           17,746,945        15,661,046         15,661,046         15,334,813        (326,234)     

TRANSFERS OUT 1,956,625             1,057,625          1,105,000           1,105,000           1,149,700          1,149,700   

14,406,113$          18,804,570$      16,766,046$       16,766,046$       16,484,513$      823,466$    

Estimated Budget Revenue over (under) Budgeted Expenditures
to fund by a variety of non-property tax resources as suggested
by the County Engineer (2,336,487)$        



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 10 





Amount needed to defease bond $ 40,505,971.28   <<---This number came from Bidding Agent

less shared Reserve Fund 5,156,454.25     

less shared Debt Service Fund 3,598,839.61     

Amount to split between counties 31,750,677.42   

Burleigh 83.32% 26,454,664.43   

Morton 16.68% $ 5,296,012.99     



From: Scott Wegner
To: Jacobs, Leigh; John Lundby; Willits, Carrie R
Cc: Rhone, Dawn R.; Jason Kloos; Unrath, Erica R.; Splonskowski, Mark D.
Subject: RE: Burleigh Morton Sales Tax
Date: Tuesday, March 12, 2024 4:30:46 PM
Attachments: image001.png

You don't often get email from swegner@aswbondlaw.com. Learn why this is important

***** CAUTION: This email originated from an outside source. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you know they are safe. *****

Leigh,
 
Just a few comments:
 
a. to be clear, the Prior Issue Reserve, is really the DSR or debt service reserve for the outstanding
bonds.
b. and, Prior Issue DSR Funds, should be just: debt service fund
c. the debt service fund amount - $4,033,048.51 was accumulated from sales tax based on
percentages, so each county should be credited a proportionate share
d. however, the DSR amount - $5,097,575.34 was funded from bond proceeds, not sales tax
collections. So, this amount should reduce the total payoff first, before county shares are
determined.
 
Scott D. Wegner
Arntson Stewart Wegner PC
701.255.1008 

 
From: Jacobs, Leigh <ljacobs@nd.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, March 12, 2024 3:48 PM
To: John Lundby <John.Lundby@colliers.com>; Scott Wegner <swegner@aswbondlaw.com>; Willits,
Carrie R <cwillits@nd.gov>
Cc: Rhone, Dawn R. <dawn.rhone@mortonnd.org>; Jason Kloos <Jason.Kloos@colliers.com>;
Unrath, Erica R. <eunrath@nd.gov>; Splonskowski, Mark D. <msplonskowski@nd.gov>
Subject: RE: Burleigh Morton Sales Tax

 
Good afternoon,   In this case, each party has a share of the defeasance. Burleigh owes 83.32% or $35,277,357.41, and Morton owes 16.68% or $7,062,245.82. I think this is consistent with the amen
sophospsmartbannerend

Good afternoon,
 
In this case, each party has a share of the defeasance. Burleigh owes 83.32% or $35,277,357.41, and
Morton owes 16.68% or $7,062,245.82. I think this is consistent with the amended JPA to use the
average sales tax received over the life of the project.
 
Each party has its own surplus fund which they fund 100%, while the reserve and DSR are essentially
funded based on sales taxes collected – basically 83/17. In this case, each party’s amount due should

mailto:swegner@aswbondlaw.com
mailto:ljacobs@nd.gov
mailto:John.Lundby@colliers.com
mailto:cwillits@nd.gov
mailto:dawn.rhone@mortonnd.org
mailto:Jason.Kloos@colliers.com
mailto:eunrath@nd.gov
mailto:msplonskowski@nd.gov
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification



BURLEIGH MORTON

30,472,570.77$    4,757,727.05$    

26,454,664.43       5,296,012.99       

Amount needed to defease as of 6/30/2024,
(4,017,906.34)$     538,285.94$        

BURLEIGH MORTON
Amount needed to Amount needed to 

Receipt Collection defease, Burleigh defease, Morton
Quarter Quarter Receipt Month Collection Month Burleigh Morton (4,017,906.34)               538,285.94                  

Q3 Q2 7/22/2024 5/31/2024 582,771.95      152,213.06          ACTUAL (4,600,678.29)               386,072.88                  
Q3 Q2 8/21/2024 6/30/2024 1,095,716.25   218,445.94          ESTIMATE (5,696,394.54)               167,626.94                  
Q3 Q3 9/22/2024 7/31/2024 1,021,130.79   200,682.44          ESTIMATE (6,717,525.33)               (33,055.50)                  
Q4 Q3 10/20/2024 8/31/2024 716,756.35      159,377.07          ESTIMATE (7,434,281.68)               (192,432.57)                
Q4 Q3 11/22/2024 9/30/2024 1,366,765.51   235,014.56          ESTIMATE (8,801,047.19)               (427,447.13)                
Q4 Q4 12/21/2024 10/31/2024 950,487.81      181,875.96          ESTIMATE (9,751,535.00)               (609,323.09)                
Q1 Q4 1/21/2025 11/31/2024 700,759.27      127,606.44          ESTIMATE (10,452,294.27)             (736,929.52)                
Q1 Q4 2/21/2025 12/31/2024 1,405,633.01   248,832.50          ESTIMATE (11,857,927.28)             (985,762.03)                
Q1 Q1 3/21/2025 1/31/2025 922,938.59      158,318.59          ESTIMATE (12,780,865.87)             (1,144,080.61)             
Q2 Q1 4/21/2025 2/28/2025 488,370.25      103,451.54          ESTIMATE (13,269,236.12)             (1,247,532.15)             
Q2 Q1 5/21/2025 3/30/2025 1,191,610.09   227,088.66          ESTIMATE (14,460,846.21)             (1,474,620.81)             

Sales Tax Receipts, Historical

Balance 06/30/2024 (cash basis)

Defeasance amount, less debt service & reserve

net of debt service and reserve funds



County of Burleigh, North Dakota 

Multi-County Sales tax Revenue Refunding Bonds 

Taxable Series 2020 

Escrow to Maturity 11/1/2032 

Escrow Summary Cost 

Maturity Type Coupon Yield $ Price Par Amount Principal Cost
+Accrued

Interest  =   Total Cost

Escrow
10/31/2024 T-NOTE 1.500% 5.283% 99.1093750% 3,174,000 3,145,731.56 12,549.38 3,158,280.94
04/30/2025 T-NOTE 2.875% 4.921% 98.5312500% 36,000 35,471.25 272.81 35,744.06
10/31/2025 T-NOTE 5.000% 4.658% 100.4062500% 4,211,000 4,228,107.19 55,498.23 4,283,605.42
04/30/2026 T-NOTE 4.875% 4.454% 100.6875000% 114,000 114,783.75 1,464.88 116,248.63
10/31/2026 T-NOTE 1.125% 4.292% 93.3125000% 4,342,000 4,051,628.75 12,875.56 4,064,504.31
04/30/2027 T-NOTE 2.750% 4.196% 96.2968750% 110,000 105,926.56 797.35 106,723.91
10/31/2027 T-NOTE 0.500% 4.128% 89.1093750% 4,401,000 3,921,703.59 5,800.23 3,927,503.82
04/30/2028 T-NOTE 1.250% 4.099% 90.2187500% 86,000 77,588.13 283.36 77,871.49
10/31/2028 T-NOTE 1.375% 4.066% 89.6250000% 4,452,000 3,990,105.00 16,135.48 4,006,240.48
04/30/2029 T-NOTE 2.875% 4.055% 94.9531250% 72,000 68,366.25 545.63 68,911.88
10/31/2029 T-NOTE 4.000% 4.049% 99.7656250% 4,528,000 4,517,387.50 47,740.87 4,565,128.37
04/30/2030 T-NOTE 3.500% 4.056% 97.1718750% 115,000 111,747.66 1,060.94 112,808.60
10/31/2030 T-NOTE 4.875% 4.058% 104.4531250% 4,667,000 4,874,827.34 59,970.32 4,934,797.66
04/30/2031 T-NOTE 4.625% 4.060% 103.2968750% 180,000 185,934.38 2,194.36 188,128.74
08/15/2031 STRIPS-I - 4.109% 75.1390000% 4,835,000 3,632,970.65 - 3,632,970.65
02/15/2032 STRIPS-I - 4.131% 73.5070000% 126,000 92,618.82 - 92,618.82
08/15/2032 STRIPS-I - 4.146% 71.9340000% 9,916,000 7,132,975.44 - 7,132,975.44

Subtotal - - - $45,365,000 $40,287,873.82 $217,189.40 $40,505,063.22
Total - - - $45,365,000 $40,287,873.82 $217,189.40 $40,505,063.22

Escrow 
Cash Deposit 908.06
Cost of Investments Purchased with Bond Proceeds 40,505,063.22
Total Cost of Investments $40,505,971.28

Delivery Date 8/05/2024

Burleigh Series 2020 Sale  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  7/31/2024  |  12:44 PM

Kensington Capital Advisors
Municipal Securities & Advisory Services

DEFEASANCE ESTIMATE JULY 31, 2024

Taylor Schmidt
Stamp

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight



Burleigh County, North Dakota 
Multi-County Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds Taxable Series 2020 
Defeasance Analysis 
Escrow to November 2032 Maturity 

Escrow Summary Cost 

Maturity Type Coupon Yield $ Price Par Amount Principal Cost
+Accrued

Interest  =   Total Cost
Escrow

10/31/2024 T-NOTE 2.250% 5.334% 99.8593750% 3,127,000 3,122,602.66 32,119.73 3,154,722.39
10/31/2025 T-NOTE 0.250% 4.969% 95.2656250% 1,542,000 1,468,995.94 1,759.89 1,470,755.83
10/31/2025 T-NOTE 5.000% 4.966% 100.0312500% 2,633,000 2,633,822.81 60,101.09 2,693,923.90
04/30/2026 T-NOTE 0.750% 4.817% 94.0156250% 41,000 38,546.41 140.38 38,686.79
10/31/2026 T-NOTE 1.125% 4.716% 93.0781250% 4,266,000 3,970,712.81 21,909.62 3,992,622.43
04/30/2027 T-NOTE 0.500% 4.637% 90.1875000% 33,000 29,761.88 75.33 29,837.21
10/31/2027 T-NOTE 4.125% 4.614% 98.6250000% 4,323,000 4,263,558.75 81,408.67 4,344,967.42
04/30/2028 T-NOTE 1.250% 4.568% 89.2500000% 86,000 76,755.00 490.76 77,245.76
10/31/2028 T-NOTE 1.375% 4.536% 88.4375000% 4,451,000 3,936,353.13 27,939.70 3,964,292.83
04/30/2029 T-NOTE 2.875% 4.517% 93.3281250% 73,000 68,129.53 958.13 69,087.66
10/31/2029 T-NOTE 4.000% 4.513% 97.7031250% 4,528,000 4,423,997.50 82,685.22 4,506,682.72
04/30/2030 T-NOTE 3.500% 4.505% 95.1093750% 116,000 110,326.88 1,853.48 112,180.36
10/31/2030 T-NOTE 4.875% 4.509% 101.9218750% 4,666,000 4,755,674.69 103,843.86 4,859,518.55
04/30/2031 T-NOTE 4.625% 4.501% 100.6875000% 178,000 179,223.75 3,758.32 182,982.07
08/15/2031 STRIPS-I - 4.523% 73.6630000% 4,837,000 3,563,079.31 - 3,563,079.31
02/15/2032 STRIPS-I - 4.524% 72.0290000% 126,000 90,756.54 - 90,756.54
08/15/2032 STRIPS-I - 4.529% 70.4090000% 9,916,000 6,981,756.44 - 6,981,756.44

Subtotal - - - $44,942,000 $39,714,054.03 $419,044.18 $40,133,098.21
Total - - - $44,942,000 $39,714,054.03 $419,044.18 $40,133,098.21

Escrow
Cash Deposit 916.12
Cost of Investments Purchased with Bond Proceeds 40,133,098.21
Total Cost of Investments $40,134,014.33

Delivery Date 10/15/2024

Defease Burleigh Co Serie  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  5/ 6/2024  |  10:43 AM

Colliers Securities LLC
Public Finance Page 4

DEFEASANCE ESTIMATE MAY 6, 2024

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight



BURLEIGH COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Burleigh County 
316 N. 5th St 

Bismarck, ND 58501 
701-712-8353

1 

REQUEST FOR COUNTY BOARD ACTION 
DATE: August 5th, 2024 
TO: Mark Splonskowski, County Auditor 
RE: Amendment to the Preliminary Budget 

Please Include this item in the next Burleigh County Board agenda packet. 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Direct the County Auditor to complete and sign the escrow agreement with Morton County related to 
our Detention Center Sales Tax Bond. 

BACKGROUND: 

The County Commission voted on February 27 2024 in a joint meeting with the Morton County 
Commission to empower the County Auditor to enter into an escrow agreement with Morton County 
relating to our Detention Center Sales Tax Bonds.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the County Board adopt the below proposed resolution(s). 

PROPOSED RESOLUTION: 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That the Burleigh County Board of Commissioners do hereby direct the 
State’s Attorney to draft an escrow agreement with the Morton County Auditor. The agreement should 
specify the following: 

(1) the basis for calculating the relative amount of the escrow cost payable by each County;
(2) the relative amounts of the escrow cost payable by each County;
(3) the payoff order for the escrow fund (i.e., first exhaust the mutual Reserve Fund, then the debt 

service fund, then each County’s respective surplus funds);
(4) if agreed by the Commission, that Burleigh is loaning to Morton County the difference between 

Morton County’s relative amount of the escrow cost at (2) above and the amount Morton 
County has deposited at the Bank of North Dakota at the time the escrow agreement is signed;

(5) if agreed by the Commission, when Morton must repay Burleigh County for loan;
(6) any other terms deemed necessary by the State's Attorney



BURLEIGH COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Burleigh County 
316 N. 5th St 

Bismarck, ND 58501 
701-712-8353

2 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That the Burleigh County Board of Commissioners do hereby direct the 
County Auditor, upon receipt of the escrow agreement from the State’s Attorney to contact the Morton 
County Auditor at the earliest possible convenience and set a date to review and sign the escrow 
agreement. The County Auditor is directed to invite the following to this meeting: the Morton County 
Commission Chair, the Burleigh County Commission Chair, and the Burleigh County Finance Director. If 
the County Auditor is unable to reach the Morton County Auditor within five (5) business days of receipt 
of the escrow agreement from the State’s Attorney, he must notify the portfolio holder immediately. 



 
BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 

 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDING AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

 

 

Prepared by 

 

BURLEIGH COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
 

  



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Audit Report Findings……………………………………………………………………………………………………….……….page 1 

Findings and Recommendations…………………………………………….…………………………………………………page 8 

Appendix A – Summary of Findings and Recommendations…..………………………………………………. page 20 

Appendix B – Audit Adjusting Entries……………………………….……………………………………………………….page 24 

Appendix C – CenCom Joint Powers Agreement………………….…………………………………………………….page 27 



 

BURLEIGH COUNTY 
Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

SECTION I – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

2023-001 – AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS – COUNTY & COMPONENT UNIT - MATERIAL WEAKNESS 

Condition 

During the audit of Burleigh County and Burleigh County Water Resource District, we proposed material adjusting entries 
to the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The adjustments were 
approved by management and are reflected in the financial statements. 

Effect 

There is an increased risk of material misstatement to Burleigh County's and Burleigh County Water Resource District's 
financial statements. 

Cause 

Burleigh County and Burleigh County Water Resource District may not have had procedures in place to ensure the 
financial statements are complete and accurate. 

Criteria 

Burleigh County and Burleigh County Water Resource District are responsible for the presentation of their financial 
statements and related note disclosures to ensure they are reliable, accurate, free of material misstatement, and in 
accordance with GAAP. 

Repeat Finding 

No. 

Recommendation 

We recommend Burleigh County and Burleigh County Water Resource District review their procedures for the 
preparation of the financial statements to ensure the financial statements are complete and accurate in accordance with 
GAAP. 

Burleigh County and Burleigh County Water Resource District’s Response 

See Corrective Action Plan  

1



BURLEIGH COUNTY 
Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs - Continued 

2023-002 – UNDER PLEDGED SECURITIES – SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY AND OTHER NONCOMPLIANCE 

Condition 

Burleigh County did not obtain adequate pledge of assets at Wells Fargo as of December 31, 2023. The County was 
under pledged by $3,008,772. 

Effect 

Burleigh County is not in compliance with N.D.C.C. §21-04-09. 

Cause 

Burleigh County did not have a process to ensure the entity is adequately pledged. 

Criteria 

N.D.C.C. §21-04-09 states “When securities are pledged to the board of any public corporation, the treasurer or other
individual legally charged with the custody of public funds shall require security in the amount of one hundred ten
dollars for every one hundred dollars of public deposits.”

Additionally, the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) model defines internal 
control as a process designed to provide reasonable assurance of the achievement of objectives that involve the 
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. Pertaining to the pledging of assets, management is responsible for adequate internal controls 
surrounding pledging of assets. 

Repeat Finding 

No. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that Burleigh County ensures that it maintains adequate pledges of securities at any bank where the 
bank balances could exceed FDIC Insurance. 

Burleigh County’s Response 

See Corrective Action Plan  

2



BURLEIGH COUNTY 
Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs - Continued 

 

2023-003 – LACK OF SEGREGATION OF DUTIES – COMPONENT UNIT- MATERIAL WEAKNESS 

Condition 

Burleigh County Water Resource District has limited personnel responsible for most accounting functions. A lack of 
segregation of duties exists as limited personnel are responsible to collect and deposit monies, issue checks, send 
checks to vendors, record receipts disbursement in journals, maintain the general ledger, create credit memos, and 
perform bank reconciliations. 

Effect 

Limited segregation of duties exposes the District to the risk of loss of assets, potential liabilities, and damage to the 
reputation, whether due to error or fraud. 

Cause 

The Burleigh County Water Resource District has no full-time staff. They outsource their secretarial bookkeeping duties 
to a private company, which has limited staff, making segregating of duties difficult to accomplish. 

Criteria 

According to the COSO framework, proper internal controls surrounding custody of assets, the recording of 
transactions, reconciling bank accounts and preparation of financial statements dictates that there should be sufficient 
accounting personnel, so duties of employees are properly segregated. The segregation of duties would provide better 
control over the assets of Burleigh County Water Resource District. 

Repeat Finding 

Yes. 

Recommendation 

To mitigate the risk associated with this lack of segregation of duties, we recommend the following: 
• Financial statements, credit memos, and payroll registers should be reviewed, analyzed, and spot-checked by

a responsible official.
• Where possible, segregate the functions of approval, posting, custody of assets, and reconciliation as they relate

to any amounts which impact the financial statements.

Burleigh County Water Resource District’s Response 

See Corrective Action Plan  

SECTION II – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

No matters were reported. 

3



 

BURLEIGH COUNTY 
Management’s Corrective Action Plan 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

4



BURLEIGH COUNTY 
Management’s Corrective Action Plan - Continued 

 
5



 

BURLEIGH COUNTY 
Status of Prior Year Findings 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

6



 

GOVERNANCE COMMUNICATION 

July 1, 2024 

Board of County Commissioners 
Burleigh County 
Bismarck, North Dakota  

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component unit, each 
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Burleigh County, North Dakota, for the year ended 
December 31, 2023. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under 
general accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as 
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information 
in our letter to you dated March 6, 2024. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you with the 
following information related to our audit. 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting 
policies used by Burleigh County are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were 
adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2023. We noted no transactions entered into 
by Burleigh County during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant 
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements presented by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain 
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of 
the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate 
affecting the governmental activities financial statements were: 

Management’s estimate of the useful lives of capital assets is based on past history of each classification of 
capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the useful lives capital assets in 
determining that is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

7



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

FINDING #1 – AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS 

Description of Finding 

While preparing our financial statements, the State Auditor’s Office required a significant number of 
adjustments to our general ledger to prepare financial statements which comply with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  The specific adjustments are at Appendix B. 

The SAO identified the cause as “Burleigh County…may not have had procedures in place to ensure the 
financial statements are complete and accurate.” This is a correct statement, but we need to identify 
specific causes and specific effects for corrective action to take place. Since each adjustment made by 
the SAO may have a different cause – or groups of adjustments may have a related cause – it is helpful 
review the list of adjusting entries individually to identify the cause of each individual adjustment or 
group of adjustments. 

Adjusting entry not included in report: Reclassify ARPA fund balance as a liability 

Description of entry 

When the County received ARPA funds, we classified the entire amount as revenue when we received it. 
In total this was over $18,000,000. This amount then became our fund balance; however, the cash 
received for the ARPA grant should be properly classified as a liability, because we must return it if we 
do not properly perform all requirements under the grant. 

The Finance Department provided the County Auditor’s office with an journal entry on February 28, 
2024 to properly classify the ARPA fund balance as a liability. The Finance Department approached the 
County Auditor’s office again in a meeting on March 6, 2024. The County Auditor’s office refused to 
make the adjusting entry to properly classify this account as a liability. 

We sent our Trial Balance to the State Auditor’s Office on March 26, 2024, without correcting the ARPA 
account. 

Consequently, this entry ended up as an audit finding. 

Cause 

The cause is a lack of continuing education in generally accepted accounting principles and a failure to 
make audit adjusting entries in prior years. 

Effect 

The effect is to overstate revenues in the years the grant was received and to understate liabilities for all 
years since the grant was received. This error is causing other issues in accounting for ARPA funds 
because we should be booking revenues as we expense things under the grant, since this is a 
reimbursement grant. 

8



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Recommendation 

See recommendation #3. 

Adjusting entry #1: Offset Negative Cash Balances 

Description of entry 

The County has a handful of funds with a negative balance in cash. Some funds, such as the CenComm 
fund, have carried a negative cash balance for several years. In effect, this means that such funds are 
borrowing money from other funds. This entry re-classifies the negative cash balances as a liability (“due 
to another fund.”) 

Cause 

The primary cause of this is a lack of cash management policies at both the County-wide level and at the 
fund level. The secondary issue is a failure to properly classify transactions at year-end for GAAP 
compliance and for financial statement presentation. 

For example, it might be harmless to carry a negative balance in cash for a few months, but we must 
properly classify transactions in our ledger at year-end. Part of the reason for the State Auditor’s 
adjusting entry is that it’s simply hard to read a ledger with negative because cash is typically carried 
with a positive (debit) balance. Another reason for the entry is to maintain consistency within our ledger 
by showing a negative cash balance as a liability in the liabilities section of the balance sheet along with 
other similar items, rather than in the asset section of the balance sheet. 

Effect 

By carrying negative cash balances in accounts, the County is unable to correctly allocate interest 
revenue from certain pooled investments such as the Wells Fargo “sweep” account, especially with no 
inter-fund loan documents. This has led to the County possibly over-allocating interest to the CenComm 
fund which is shared with the City of Bismarck. Per the joint powers agreement, we must leave all 
interest earned on the CenComm investments in the fund. See  Appendix C. 

Recommendation 

See recommendations #1, #2, and #3. 

Citation: GASB Codification I. General Principles, 1800.802 

9



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Adjusting Entry #3: Reclassify Interest Income to Change in Investment Market Value 

Description of entry 

The County accounts for any change in an investment value from month to month as “interest revenue.” 
The adjusting entry breaks out the change in market value component from the interest revenue 
account within the County’s ledger. 

Cause 

The cause is the County classifying any change in investment value as interest revenue. Although the 
County is required to display investments at market value on the face of the financial statements, the 
County should not classify any change in value as interest revenue. In fact, there are several different 
reasons why an investment would change value. Among them are the amortization of a bond discount 
or premium; change in market value; or capitalization of interest expense. The County is currently 
recording all these transactions as “interest revenue.” The County is also recording bank fees as a 
reduction in interest revenue rather than as a separate line item within the account. 

GASB does not require the County to separate the different elements of investment income on the 
financial statements; however, in this case, the recognition of the various elements of investment 
income in our general ledger provide management with critical decision-making information. 

Effect 

The effect is a loss of nuance in the financial records of the County. Some years this has been misleading 
for decision makers. In the year 2022, our financial statements showed negative interest of ($85,703). 
This leads management to believe we do not have cash from interest revenue available to finance the 
County. In fact, the County earned several hundred thousand dollars in interest during the 2022 fiscal 
year, but due to a change in interest rates, our investments lost value. Since we are recording a change 
in market value as interest revenue, we show negative interest for the year, but the change in value had 
no impact on cash from interest revenue.  

Recommendation 

See recommendation #4. 

Additionally, we recommend the County to account separately for each distinct transaction relating to 
investments. Typically, this will include transactions such as amortization of bond discounts or 
premiums; interest; fees; and unrealized gain or loss on investments. On the balance sheet, the change 
in investment value should be recorded in a contra-asset account to the investments called “Fair Value 
Adjustment.” An example adjustment is below: 

10



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

The market value of a bond declined by $1,000 during the month. 

Debit Credit 

Unrealized Gain or Loss  $1,000 

Fair Value Adjustment   $1,000 

On the balance sheet, the fair value adjustment represents a temporary decline in the value of the 
investment. The unrealized gain or loss represents a loss on the income statement. 

Citation: GASB Statement No. 31 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for 
External Investment Pools 

Adjusting Entry #4: Record Reimbursement from Morton County for BMDC 

Description of entry 

The County incorrectly removed Morton’s share of ARPA-funded detention center expenditures from 
the ledger. 

Cause 

The County has four (4) detention center positions which are funded by the ARPA grant. The County has 
a side letter with Morton County governing the reimbursement of those positions. In this letter, the 
Counties agreed that Morton would reimburse Burleigh 24.5% of these four positions. In the general 
ledger, when the County transferred these expenses from the general fund to the ARPA fund, we 
incorrectly transferred 100% of the salaries which includes the amount funded by Morton. Upon 
reimbursement from ARPA, we remove these expenses from the ARPA fund (crediting the expense) 
rather than crediting a revenue account because the County incorrectly booked all ARPA revenue upon 
receiving the cash. This means that these expenses are not recorded anywhere, nor are the associated 
reimbursement revenues from Morton. 

Effect 

The effect of this error is to understate jail revenues and expenses for the 2023 fiscal year by 
approximately $150,000. 

11



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Recommendation 

See recommendation #5 

Additionally, the County should correct this transaction for fiscal year 2024 and onward. 

Adjusting Entry #5: Reclassify Salary Expenses to Contracted Service Expenses 

Description of entry 

The County classified contracted services related to Clyde Thompson and Wayne Goter as salaries 
expenses in the County Board and State’s Attorney funds, respectively. 

Cause 

The cause of this entry is the failure by the County to expand its general ledger accounts and account 
elements (Columns) as the County has grown over the decades. In this specific case, because the County 
Board and State’s Attorney funds did not have a contracted services account added in the general ledger 
(although a contracted services account was subsequently added to the States Attorney), staff utilized 
the existing salaries expense account to account for contracted services. This practice goes back to 2019 
at least. 

Effect 

The effect is to overstate salaries expense while understating contracted services. This could create 
some confusion with FICA compliance because we do not pay FICA taxes to contracted services, but we 
would expect all salaries expenses to have an associated FICA component. 

Recommendations 

See recommendation #4. 

Additionally, the County should reclassify all such transactions as contracted services for fiscal year 2024 
and beyond. 

Adjusting Entry #6: Reclassify Interest Income from Internal Service Fund to Transfer In 

Description of entry 

The SAO is reclassifying interest expense recorded in the Health Insurance fund as a transfer out. 

Cause 

The general fund loaned money to the health insurance fund, which was invested. There were no loan 
documents drawn up at the time of the loan indicating a repayment schedule or an interest rate. At 
some point, the County made the decision to transfer interest earnings on this loan from the health 

12



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

insurance fund to the general fund; however, we are not making the correct accounting entries to 
accomplish this. 

We are booking interest revenue in the health insurance fund and booking the same amount of interest 
revenue in the general fund; then we are booking interest expense for the same amount in the health 
insurance fund. The net effect moves interest from the health insurance fund to the general fund, but in 
the process we double-book revenue and create an interest expense in the health insurance fund which 
has no explanation or logical reason to be there. 

Without loan documents to support the inter-fund loan, there is no way to assign an interest rate to 
these funds. Consequently, this transaction should be recorded as a transfer. 

Effect 

The effect of booking interest revenue in the health insurance fund and the general fund for the same 
investment activity overstates our interest revenue.  

Recommendation 

See recommendation #7. 

Adjusting Entry #7: Offset Negative Cash Balances 

See adjusting entry #1. 

Adjusting Entry #8: Adjustment to Decrease Inventory for 2023 Used Amount 

Description of entry 

The County has significant inventories, mostly in the Highway Department. These consist mainly of 
gravel and culverts. The County failed to adjust inventories to reflect the amounts on hand during the 
year-end inventory conducted by the highway department. 

Cause 

The County made no entries to inventory during the 2023 fiscal year. The cause is a failure to follow of 
policies and procedures, and a general lack of financial statement awareness within the County. The 
Highway Department sends these year-end adjusting entries to the County Auditor’s Office or the 
Finance Department. This year, with no Finance Director or Assistant Finance Director at year end, the 
Highway Department sent this entry to the County Auditor and Deputy County Auditor. The County then 
failed to make this adjustment during the year-end closing process. 

13



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Effect

The effect understated expenditures in the highway department by approximately $580,000, and 
overstated assets (inventory) by the same amount. 

Recommendation 

See recommendations #2, #5 

Adjusting Entry #9: Adjustment to Record Retainage Payable 

Description of entry 

The County failed to record an expenditure and account payable related to a Retainage Payable on the 
71st Ave Road Project. 

Cause 

The cause is a lack of policies and procedures relating to the year-end closing process. 

Effect 

The effect understates expenditures for 2023 by $82,390 and understates liabilities by the same 
amount. 

Recommendation 

See recommendation #2 

Adjusting Entry #10: Reclassify Interest Income to Change in Investment Market Value 

Recommendation 

See recommendation #3 

Adjusting Entry #11: Reclassify Prairie Dog Funds from a Transfer In to Intergovernmental Revenue 

Description of entry 

The County recorded Prairie Dog funds received from the State as a Transfer In. The State Auditor’s 
Office reclassified it as intergovernmental revenue (Note that under GASB, Transfers In are not 
considered revenues). 

Cause 

The cause is the failure to add new accounts to the ledger as needed and a lack of continuing 
education in governmental accounting. In this case, the Special Road and Bridge fund did not have an 

14



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Intergovernmental Revenue account set up. Rather than create a new account, the County booked 
Prairie Dog revenue as a transfer in. This is not consistent with GASB terminology which defines revenue 
as follows: “revenues means increases in (sources of) fund financial resources other than from 
interfund transfers and debt issue proceeds and redemptions of demand bonds.” Since we recorded 
this transaction as a transfer in, it is excluded from revenue under GASB. 

Effect 

The effect is to understate County revenues by $4,000,000. 

Recommendation 

Reclassify this transaction as intergovernmental revenue in the 2023 ledger. 

See recommendation #3, #4 

Citation: Citation: GASB Codification I. General Principles, 1800.131 

Adjusting Entry #12: Reclassify Miscellaneous Revenue to Intergovernmental Revenue and Sale of 
Assets 

Description of entry 

GASB classifies governmental fund revenues by fund and source. Major revenue sources are taxes, 
licenses and permits, intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, fines and forfeits, and 
miscellaneous. 

GASB requires that sale of capital assets be reported as other financing sources. 

This entry reclassifies our revenues to comply with GASB requirements. 

While researching this entry, we learned that the County Auditor’s Office failed to remove six (6) 
deleted assets from our fixed asset listing after receiving the year-end update from the Highway 
Department. Included on these were the two motorgraders from the adjusting entry. 

We sold these Motorgraders for $330,000, but left them on the asset listing with a book value of 
$301,500. In addition to the other assets we failed to dispose of from the asset listing at the end of 
2023, we overstated our assets by $344,850.56. 

Cause 

The cause is a failure to add new accounts to the ledger as needed. The cause is also a lack of continuing 
education in generally accepted accounting principles. 

Effect 

The effect is to lose the nuanced source of revenues by putting sale of assets and intergovernmental 
revenues into a miscellaneous account. We also increase the difficulty of preparing financial statements 

15



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

that comply with generally accepted account principles because we are burying transactions that have 
specific reporting requirements among miscellaneous revenues. 

Recommendation 

See recommendation #3. 

Citation: Citation: GASB Codification I. General Principles, 1800.130; GASB 34, ¶88 

Adjusting Entry #13: Establish a Due to Other Funds Asset to Offset Negative Cash Balances 

See Adjusting Entry #1. 

Adjusting Entry #14: Adjustment to Record Off-Book Activity for the 2020 Sales Tax Bond 

Description of entry 

The County incorrectly accounted for the bond sinking fund at Bank of North Dakota related to our 
Detention Center Sales Tax bond. The County was essentially double-counting cash which resulted in a 
massively inflated cash balance on the books. The State Auditor’s Office corrected this entry for us 
several years in a row, but we failed to make the adjusting entry on our books. 

In 2023, rather than correct the entry, the County removed the bond sinking fund from our books. We 
also ceased to account for sales tax revenues at this time. 

The Finance Department provided the County Auditor’s office with an adjusting entry to add this 
account back to our books in the proper amounts on February 20, 2024 with an email showing the entry 
to make and the back up (support) for the entry. The Finance Department approached the County 
Auditor’s office again in a meeting on March 6, 2024. The County Auditor’s office refused to make the 
adjusting entry to add this account back to our books. 

We sent our Trial Balance to the State Auditor’s Office on March 26, 2024, without correcting the bond 
sinking entry. 

Consequently, this entry ended up as an audit finding. 

Cause 

The cause is the failure to make the adjusting entries provided by the State Auditor’s during financial 
statement audits over the years. 

Effect 

The effect is to understate assets, revenues, and fund balance by millions of dollars. 

16



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Recommendation 

See recommendation #3, #5 

Adjusting Entry #15: Prior Period Adjustment to Record Missed Payable from 2022 

Description of entry 

The County failed to properly accrue an expenditure at the end of 2022. The State Auditor’s Office 
apparently missed this entry during the last audit. During the current year’s financial audit, the State 
Auditor’s Office corrected this error in our 2023 books. 

Cause 

The cause is the lack of effective year end closing procedures and the failure to record transactions using 
the transaction date. The date the County uses in the general ledger is the date the general ledger entry 
is made, not the transaction date. This is a departure from normal accounting practices. In virtually all 
cases, entities record the date the underlying transaction occurred, such as the date on an invoice, in 
the general ledger. The transaction date is vital for many reasons including classifying transactions 
within the correct year.  

Effect 

The effect is to understate expenditures during the 2022 year and to overstate expenditures during 
2023. 

Recommendation 

See recommendation #2 and #8. 

Adjusting Entry #16: Reclassify Interest Expense to Transfer Out 

See adjusting entry #6. 

Adjusting Entry #17: Prior Period Adjustment to Remove 66th St Project from CIP; reclassify assets 
4578 and 4579 to CIP, and add back asset 4053 

Adjusting Entry #18: Adjustment to Record Current Period Capital Asset Additions 

Description of entry 

This adjustment removes the 66th street project from construction in progress at the end of 2022; 
reclassifies to construction in progress 2 semi-trucks we started building in 2022 but finished in 2023; 
and adds an asset that the County Auditor’s Office incorrectly deleted in 2021. 

17



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Cause 

The cause is a lack of policies and procedures related to fixed assets and a lack of continuing education 
in generally accepted accounting principles. 

Relating to the two semi-trucks we built, the County purchased the chassis in 2022, but the trucks were 
not finished until 2023. When the trucks were finished in 2023, the County simply went back to the 
asset listing and changed the cost of the assets, which will impact our prior year general ledger. The 
trucks should be classified as “construction in progress” until completed in 2023 then added to the 
fixed asset ledger and depreciated. 

Effect 

The effect is to misstate fixed assets in 2022 and to misstate depreciation. 

Recommendation 

See recommendations #2, #6. 

Adjusting Entry #19: Record Payables found during the audit 

Adjusting Entry #20: Record retainage payable 

Description of entry 

The County recorded expenses and payables relating to 2023 in 2024. The County did the same with a 
retainage. The State Auditor’s Office made the entry to move these expenses into the 2023 fiscal year. 

Cause 

The cause is a lack of year-end policies and procedures and the failure to record the transaction date in 
the ledger. 

Effect 

The effect is to understate liabilities and expenditures in the 2023 year. 

Recommendation 

See recommendation #2 and #8. 

18



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

FINDING #2: UNDER PLEDGED SECURITIES 

Description of Finding 

The County Treasurer, under NDCC 21-04-09, is required to obtain security for public funds in the 
amount of 110% of the deposit. The pledge acts as a form of insurance on amounts over the FDIC limit 
of $250,000. The County failed to obtain sufficient pledged securities in the Wells Fargo account at year 
end.  

Cause 

The cause is a lack of policies and procedures surrounding the Auditor/Treasurer duties and a lack of 
internal controls to identify instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. 

Effect 

The effect is to put public funds at risk. 

Recommendation 

The County should adopt policies and procedures surrounding the Auditor/Treasurer duties. The County 
should adopt internal controls to identify instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. 

FINDING #3: LACK OF SEGREGATION OF DUTIES 

Description of Finding 

Burleigh County Water Resources District has limited personnel responsible for most accounting 
functions, resulting in incompatible duties being performed by staff. An incompatible duty are duties 
that increase the risk of fraud or error. 

Cause 

The cause is a lack of staff. 

Effect 

The effect is to increase the risk of fraud or error. 

Recommendation 

The recommendation is to consider whether the cost of fully staffing the Water Resource District would 
exceed the risk of loss due to fraud or error, and to consider whether other procedures can be 
performed to minimize the risk associated with the lack of segregation of duties. 

19



APPENDIX A - 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

Finding No. Summary of Recommendations Related Audit Adjustment
1. Cash Management #1, #7, #13
2. Year End Policies and Procedures #1, #7, #8, #9, #13, #15, #17, #18, #19, #20
3.  GAAP Continuing Education #1, #7, #11, #12, #14, ARPA entry
4. General Ledger Update #3, #5, #10, #11, #13
5. Supervisory Review #4, #8, #14
6. Improve Fixed Asset Policies & Procedures #17, #18
7. Improve Documentation #6, #16
8. Add transaction date to general ledger #15, #19, #20

Recommendation #1: Adopt County-wide and Fund-level Cash Management Policies 

The County has several funds with a negative cash balance. Some of these accounts have carried a 
negative cash balance for several years. The reason for the negative cash balances is the County lacks 
County-wide and Fund-level cash management policies. The County simply “writes a check” from these 
funds without regard to how much cash the funds have. Some county funds, such as unorganized 
townships, cannot be made positive on the long-term due to economic factors (too few residents); other 
funds, such as CenComm, are negative because of a lack of cash management, planning, or awareness 
from staff and Treasurer. 

The County should adopt County-wide and Fund-level cash management policies in coordination with 
department heads and the County Commission. The plan should include a cash forecast at both the 
County-wide and the Fund level, including plans to invest excess cash so investments mature in line with 
cash needs. The plan should include policies or procedures for situations where funds have negative 
cash, including identifying which funds are loaning money to the negative funds and reclassifying 
negative balances as a liability at period end. 

By carrying negative cash balances in accounts, the county is unable to correctly allocate interest 
revenue from certain pooled investments such as the Wells Fargo “sweep” account, especially with no 
inter-fund loan documents. This has led to the County possibly over-allocating interest to the CenComm 
fund which is shared with the City of Bismarck. Per the joint powers agreement, we must leave all 
interest earned on the CenComm investments in the fund. See  Appendix C. 

Recommendation #2#: Improve year-end policies and procedures 

Most of the County’s adjusting entries relate to the year-end process. In the past, the County Finance 
Director prepared Financial Statements, and it seems likely that this process acted as a review of the 
books, especially the year-end, because that is when many financial statement adjustments take place, 
such as accruing expenditures. The County is now outsourcing the financial statement preparation and 
the year-end process is suffering. 

It is common in accountancy to revert to the “SALY” principal, an acronym which means “same as last 
year.” That seems to be the case with the County’s year-end process. We rely heavily on the prior year’s 
records to close the current year. The challenge becomes when we have new or different scenarios 

20



APPENDIX A - 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

develop throughout the year, which is often the case. In those cases, there is no record from prior years 
to rely on.  

Rather than rely on a list of duties or on the prior year’s activities, the County should take a wholistic 
approach to closing the books by reflecting on broad categories such as payables, receivables, fixed 
assets, cash, etc. Another approach might be to create a checklist that reviews broad categories. For 
example, the checklist might ask, “Have all expenses been accrued?” and ask the accountant to check 
off fund-by-fund.  

Whatever approach the County chooses, it must go further than simply a list of procedures we did last 
year. The County should involve more staff in the closing process. For example, the receivables 
accountant should oversee accruing receivables; likewise, the payables accountant with payables. This 
would improve the speed of the process rather than having one staff member do most of the work. It 
would also create opportunities for a level of review since one person wouldn’t be doing all the work. 

Recommendation #3 – Continuing Education in GAAP 

Some of the adjusting entries relate to a misunderstanding or lack of continuing education in generally 
accepted accounting principles as they relate to governmental entities. For example, GASB statement 
34 requires that revenue from sale of capital assets be reported as “Other Financing Sources.” The 
County reported capital asset sales as “Miscellaneous Revenue,” essentially burying the transaction in 
the ledger and making compliance with accounting standards much more difficult. Additionally, 
recording Prairie Dog Funds as a Transfer In is not correct under GAAP because transfers are not 
considered revenues; in this case, the Prairie Dog funds are intergovernmental revenues which must be 
reported as revenues. 

Accounting standards are evolving, and sometimes we will encounter a new situation where we must 
apply an old accounting standard that we haven’t applied up to this point. The county should adopt a 
continuing education policy for accounting staff which requires a certain number of hours per year. 

Recommendation #4 – General Ledger Update 

Some of the adjustments relate to the inadequacy of our general ledger to capture the breadth of 
economic activity in Burleigh County. Economic activity has exploded in the last 10-15 years, but our 
ledger has not been updated. We haven’t added significantly more accounts – in fact, we have 17 fewer 
accounts in 2023 than in 2015. We haven’t added any additional accounting elements – such as sub-
departments or project codes. 

The County should consider re-writing the general ledger to provide an adequate number of accounts 
and account elements (Funds, departments, sub-departments, accounts, project codes, etc.) to properly 
account for the vast increase in economic activity in Burleigh County since the current ledger was 
adopted. 

One example is the Gas Tax Refund revenue account. Since at least 2015, this account recorded our 
quarterly Township distributions from the ND Treasurer; however, we have begun using this account as 
a catch-all for various State financial aid packages such as SB2016 in 2019; HB 1015 in 2021; and more 
recently in 2023, Prairie Dog and Legacy Fund distributions. 

21



APPENDIX A - 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

By adding various new State financial distributions to this existing account, we create inconsistencies 
within the ledger and make year-to-year comparisons impossible. These funds, especially permanent 
funding mechanisms such as Prairie Dog and Legacy Fund, should be in their own, new account, not in 
an account that historically captures the Township Road Distribution. 

This is a systemic issue within our ledger goes back for years. Economic activity has dramatically 
increased in the State and in the region in the past decade, but we are using the same ledger from 
decades ago. 

Other counties are handling their ledgers in completely different ways. Grand Forks County has five 
account elements (columns) and they have a wide range of accounts which capture the depth of their 
economic activity. For example, we have eleven (11) distinct sources of tax revenue represented in our 
“MH AND RE TAX” account, number 31110, including real estate tax; mobile home tax; railroad 
assessments; utility assessments; and more. Grand Forks County breaks each of these distinct sources of 
revenue out into their own account number. In total Grand Forks has over 4,000 accounts in their ledger 
while Burleigh has only 1,600. 

Grand Forks County also provides for additional columns to capture important information. For 
example, they have a column with a unique identifier for grant-funded expenditures. They also use this 
column to capture the tax year. For example, every year they add a new account for the tax year. For 
2025, they will add an account “xxxx.xxxx.xxxx.xxxx.2025.” Another use for this column is to track 
Highway Department projects by a unique project number. 

Recommendation #5 – Supervisory Review 

A handful of adjusting entries were simple errors. The complexity of the underlying transaction can 
increase the chances of error. One such adjustment is the adjustment to correct Morton County’s 
reimbursement for the Burleigh Morton Detention Center ARPA funded staff. This is a complex entry 
because it involves reimbursement from two sources: ARPA and Morton County. We failed to correctly 
account for this transaction, and as a result understated both revenues and expenditures by 
approximately $150,000.  

The County should implement policies so that adjusting entries are reviewed and signed off on by a 
supervisor, if possible. The Finance Director job description includes a duty to review journal entries; 
however, accounting staff do not report to the Finance Director and have refused to make the journal 
entries recommended by the Finance Director in the past. Consequently, this is not an effective internal 
control, unless it goes to the level of the County Commission, because the County Commission can direct 
the County Auditor to keep all books and records required by the Commission per NDCC 11-03-02 
paragraph 7. 

Recommendation #6 – Improve Fixed Assets Policies & Procedures 

Several adjustments relate to fixed assets. Fixed Assets are generally kept in a part of the software called 
a “subsidiary ledger.” The subsidiary ledger is a detailed list of all assets with their purchase date, cost, 
accumulated depreciation, current depreciation, book value, salvage value, and disposal date if 
disposed. The fixed asset subsidiary ledger is a critical part of the accounting record because it accounts 
for a large portion of the balance sheet by dollar value.  

22



APPENDIX A - 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

The County had errors relating to failure to add assets; delete assets; correctly classify assets as 
construction in progress; or remove construction in progress projects that were cancelled. The County 
should evaluate and improve fixed asset policies. Policy books and manuals are available online; the 
County should research and adopt fixed asset policies appropriate for its operations. 

Recommendation #7 – Improve Documentation 

The County general ledger has 149 funds and 82 departments but lacks any centralized documentation 
describing why the funds exist or what laws, agreements, regulations, or resolutions govern them. This 
is a major weakness in our accounting system and all but guarantees errors will occur. We’ve already 
had issues with the lack of documentation this year with a failure to pay the Bismarck Parks District 
based on an agreement from 1998. We needed a reminder from the Bismarck Parks District to make the 
agreed-upon payment. 

This issue of a lack of documentation is systemic, and it its often hard to track issues such as Commission 
actions that impact accounting or finance. The County should organize documentation related to the 
general ledger by fund and department in a centralized, digital location. 

Recommendation #8 – Add Transaction Date to General Ledger 

The date field is a critical piece of accounting information recorded in every general ledger. In almost 
every case, the date shown in the ledger is the transaction date. This is often the date on an invoice, for 
example. Rather than record the transaction date, Burleigh County records the journal date – the date 
staff made the entry into the general ledger. The journal date is a trivial piece of information, whereas 
the transaction date is critical.  

Without the transaction date, it’s nearly impossible to forecast the current year’s results or to compare 
the current year with the prior year, especially in years of staff turnover. As staff get busy or are in 
training, there’s a greater delay between when a transaction occurs and when staff find time to enter 
the transaction into the ledger. Consequently, if staff fall behind compared to the previous year, then 
the transaction will show up at a later date in the ledger.  

No transaction date makes the year-end process much more difficult, because we are required by GAAP 
to keep our books based on the transaction date, but we can’t easily assess that information based on 
the general ledger.  

Adding the transaction date to the ledger is a critical step in improving our financial report both to 
external users through our financial statements and internally with reports to management. 

23



Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other 
than those that are trivial, and report them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such 
misstatements. The schedules list all misstatements provided by management or detected as a result of audit procedures 
that were corrected by management. 

2023 Adjustments - Primary Government

Debit Credit

General Fund
Establish a Due From Other Funds Asset to Offset Negative Cash 
Balances in Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds

Due From Other Funds 1,721,451$      -$  
Cash - 1,721,451 

Remove February 2024 State Aid from Intergovernmental Receivables
Revenue 496,424 - 

Intergovernmental Receivable - 496,424

Reclassify Interest Income to Change in Investment Market Value OFS
Interest Income 156,293 - 

Change in Investment Market Value - 156,293

To Record Reimbursement from Morton County for BMDC
Expenditures 148,099 - 

Charge for Service Revenues - 148,099

Reclassify Salary Expenses to Contracted Service Expenses
Contracted Service Expenses 120,370 - 

Salary Expenses - 120,370

Reclassify Interest Income from Interal Service Fund to Transfer In
Interest Earnings 75,671            - 

Transfer In - 75,671 

Special Revenue Fund
Establish a Due to Other Funds Asset to Offset Negative Cash Balances in 
Special Revenue Fund with the General Fund

Cash 1,691,164$      -$  
Due to Other Funds - 1,691,164 

Adjustment to Decrease Inventory for 2023 Used Amount
Expenditures 579,738 - 

Inventory - 579,738

Adjustment to Record Retainage Payable
Expenditures 82,390            - 

Retainage Payable - 82,390 

Reclassify Interest Income to Change in Investment Market Value OFS
Interest Income 271,702 - 

Change in Investment Market Value - 271,702

Audit Adjustments

APPENDIX B - 
AUDIT ADJUSTING ENTRIES

24

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#1.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text


Leigh Jacobs
Text Box
Note: This adjusting entry was made in error; per discussion with SAO it is not material to our financial statements as a whole

Leigh Jacobs
Cross-Out

Leigh Jacobs
Cross-Out

Leigh Jacobs
Cross-Out

Leigh Jacobs
Cross-Out

Leigh Jacobs
Cross-Out

Leigh Jacobs
Cross-Out

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#2.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#3.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#4.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#5.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#6.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#7.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#8.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#9.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#10.



2023 Adjustments - Primary Government

Debit Credit

Special Revenue Fund
Reclassify Prairie Dog Funds from a Transfer In to Intergovernmental 
Revenue

Transers In 4,160,080        - 
Intergovernmental Revenue - 4,160,080 

Reclassify Miscellaneous Revenue to Intergovernmental Revenue and Sale 
of Assets

Miscellaneous Revenue 755,539$         -$  
Sale of Assets - 330,000
Intergovernmental Revenue - 425,539

Debt Serivce Fund
Establish a Due to Other Funds Asset to Offset Negative Cash Balances in 
Debt Service Fund with the General Fund

Cash 30,286$          -$  
Due to Other Funds - 30,286 

Adjustment to Record Off-Book Activity for the 2020 Sales Tax Bond
Cash 31,924,816      - 
Intergovernmental Receivable 2,106,392        - 

Fund Balance, December 31, 2023 - 34,031,208 

Principal Expense 2,647,750        - 
Interest & Fees Expense 781,718 - 
Net Change Fund Balance, December 31, 2023 9,338,908        - 

Sales Tax Revenue - 11,518,431 
Interest Earnings - 208,780
Miscellaneous Revenue - 1,041,165 

Internal Service Fund
Prior Period Adjustment to Record Missed Payable from 2022

Net Position, January 1, 2023 PPA 224,159$         -$  
Accounts Payable PPA - 224,159

Reclassify Interest Expense to Transfer Out 
Transfer Out 75,671            - 

Interest Expense - 75,671 

Government Wide Activities
Prior Period Adjustment to Remove 66th St Project from CIP, Reclassify 
Assets 4578 & 4579 to CIP, and to add back Asset 4053 to Capital 
Asssets

Net Position, January 1, 2023 PPA 351,030 - 
Capital Assets - Nondepreciable PPA - 30,758 
Capital Assets, Depreciable, Net PPA - 320,272

Adjustment to Record Current Period Capital Asset Additions for Assets 
4578 & 4579

Capital Assets - Nondepreciable 61,450            - 
Expenditures - 61,450 

Audit Adjustments

APPENDIX B - 
AUDIT ADJUSTING ENTRIES

25

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#11.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#12.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#13.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#14.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#15.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#16.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#17.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#18.



Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or not 
resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, or reporting matter that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our 
audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter 
dated July 1, 2024. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to the County’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed 
on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that 
the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with 
management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in 
the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the budgetary comparison information, schedule of employer’s share of net  
pension liability and employer contributions, schedule of employer’s share of net OPEB liability and employer 
contributions, and notes to the required supplementary information which are required supplementary information (RSI) 
that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to 
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and notes to the schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary 
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and 
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information 
to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

2023 Adjustments - Water Resource District

Fund Level Adjustments Debit Credit
To Record Audit Found Payables
Expenditures 150,829    -           

Accounts Payable - 150,829 

To Record Retainage Payable
Expenditures 11,050      -           

Retainage Payable - 11,050 

Audit Adjustments

APPENDIX B - 
AUDIT ADJUSTING ENTRIES

26

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#19.

Leigh Jacobs
Typewritten Text
#20.



27

APPENDIX C - CENCOMM JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT


	Aa complete packet.pdf
	August 5, 2024
	Aa complete packet.pdf
	County Weed Board


	July 1st 2024 Weed Board minutes
	Aa complete packet
	Aa complete packet.pdf
	County Commission


	July 15th, 2024 Minutes
	Aa complete packet
	Aa complete packet.pdf
	Consent Abatement letter August 5, 2024
	Sheet1

	Consent MATPAC WRESTLING CLUB - CROSSROADS_Redacted
	Consent SANFORD HEALTH FOUNDATION.Redacted
	#6
	Mitch 2.0 Memo Soil Conservation District
	Mitch 2.1
	Mitch 2.3
	Mitch 1.0
	Mitch 1.1
	Mitch 1.3
	Mitch 1.4
	Mitch 1.7
	Mitch 1.8
	1-1 July Agenda - PZC-7-10-2024
	3-1 Staff Report_Preliminary_A2-10-2024_amended
	3-1-1 Location Map
	3-1-2 Preliminary Plat
	Sheets and Views
	Prelim Plat


	3-1-3 Site Map
	3-1-4 attachments
	3-2 Art. 8 Section 28 draft 12 Tier I. II_draft_final
	3-3 01 Art. 8 Special Uses Sec 29_-Solar Farms_draft_
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND RE-ENACT ARTICLE 8 OF THE 1972 AMENDED ZONING ORDINANCE OF BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA RELATING TO SECTION 29 SOLAR FARMS
	SECTION 29 Solar Energy System Facilities
	I. DEFINITIONS
	II. APPLICABILITY

	4-1 Staff Report - Public Hearing-MFF-amended
	4-1-1 Location Map
	4-1-2 Site Map
	4-1-3 pictures
	4-1-4 brochure
	4-2 Staff Report_baldwin Greenhouse_amended
	4-2-5 Staff Document final
	4-2-6 Stoll Farms Documentation
	4-2-7 Feist Documentation
	5-1 Article 8 Section 30 Data Center_draft 06282024
	5-2 Art. 8 Section 31 Acc. Dwelling Units_draft 012
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Mitch 1.9
	Mitch 1.10 plaintif presentation
	Mitch petitioner photos (1)
	Mitch petitioner photos (2)
	Mitch petitioner photos (3)
	Mitch petitioner photos (4)
	Mitch petitioner photos (5)
	Mitch petitioner photos (6)
	Mitch petitioner photos (7)
	Mitch petitioner photos (8)
	Mitch petitioner photos (9)
	Mitch petitioner photos (10)
	Mitch petitioner photos (11)
	Mitch petitioner photos (12)
	Mitch petitioner photos (13)
	Mitch petitioner photos (14)
	Mitch petitioner photos (15)
	Mitch petitioner photos (16)
	Mitch petitioner photos (17)
	Mitch petitioner photos (18)
	#7
	Hall Board Letter for 2025 budget changes
	#9
	Leigh 9.a. Preliminary Budget Discussion Resolution to Amend Preliminary Budget
	#10
	Leigh 10.a. Sales Tax Bond
	BND June Bank Statement
	Payoff Order
	RE_ Burleigh Morton Sales Tax
	Defeasance Schedule
	Defesance Estimate 07.31.2024
	Defesance Estimate 05.06.2024
	Page 4

	Resolution to Sign Escrow Agreement

	Leigh 10.b. Financial Statement Audit Report
	Finance Dept Burleigh 2023 Audit Report - Findings and Recommendations
	COMES AFTER COVER PAGE 2023 Audit Findings - WITHOUT AJES
	Finance Dept Burleigh 2023 Audit Report - Findings and Recommendations
	APPENDIX A Summary of Recommendations
	Appendix B 2023 Audit Adjusting Entries
	Appendix C CenComm JPA Interest






